
 

1 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Agendas/Minutes:  
www.guadalupeaz.org 

 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE GUADALUPE TOWN COUNCIL 

 
THURSDAY, JANUARY 23, 2020 

6:00 P.M. 
GUADALUPE TOWN HALL 

9241 SOUTH AVENIDA DEL YAQUI, COUNCIL CHAMBERS  
GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Town of Guadalupe Council 
and to the general public that the Guadalupe Town Council will hold a meeting, open to the public, on 
Thursday, January 23, 2020, at 6:00 P.M., at Guadalupe Town Hall, 9241 South Avenida del Yaqui, 
Council Chambers, Guadalupe, Arizona.  

 
AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
C. INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  None.   
 
E. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  An opportunity is provided to the public to address the Council on items 
that are not on the agenda or included on the consent agenda. A total of 3 minutes will be provided for 
the Call to the Audience agenda item, unless the Council requests an exception to this limit. Please 
note that those wishing to comment on agenda items posted for action will be provided the opportunity 
at the time the item is heard. 
 
F. MAYOR and COUNCIL PRESENTATIONS:  None. 
 
G.  DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS: 
 
1. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE:  Council will be presented the Town of Guadalupe audit report by 
Matt Bingham of Colby & Powell, PLC, Certified Public Accountants for fiscal year 2018/2019 ending 
June 30, 2019.  Council will consider and may accept the audit report; and, may provide direction to the 
Town Manager / Clerk.   
 
2. ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION HOUSE DEMOLITION:  Council will consider 
the staff recommendation to grant the State of Arizona, through its Department of Transportation 
(ADOT), an exclusive into a Temporary Construction Easement (TCE) for construction in related to 
ADOT Project No. 010 MA 151 F0072 01C of the Phoenix – Casa Grande Highway; and, direct the 
Mayor to sign all necessary documents in furtherance of this TCE. If approved, ADOT and its contractors 
will demolish the Town owned house located at 9050 South Calle Bella Vista, Guadalupe, AZ to provide 
for widening of the Guadalupe Road bridge over Interstate 10.  Council may provide direction to the 
Town Manager / Clerk.   
 
  

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


 

2 
 

       
 

Valerie Molina 
Mayor 

 
Ricardo Vital 
Vice Mayor 

 
Mary Bravo 

Councilmember 
 

Anita Cota 
Councilmember 

 
Gloria Cota 

Councilmember 
 

Elvira Osuna 
Councilmember 

 
Joe Sánchez 

Councilmember 
 
 

Agendas/Minutes:  
www.guadalupeaz.org 

 
 

Town Council Chambers 
9241 S. Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
Phone: (480) 730-3080 

Fax: (480)-505-5368 
 
 

3. AWARD OF BID – RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES:   Council will consider the staff recommendation 
to award a two-year contract (C2020-02) not to exceed $80,000 to Consulting Engineering, Inc., to 
provide temporary construction easement services and provide property acquisition services for 
required temporary construction easements and other property rights, if needed, for construction and 
improvement of Avenida del Yaqui, from Calle Cerritos to Calle Carmen; and, shall ensure that all 
specified requirements of federal, state, and local regulations related to municipal land acquisition are 
satisfied.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.   
 
4. LA LOMITA USE PERMIT (ORDINANCE NO. O2020.01):  Council may review and may adopt 
an ordinance related to park permitting requirements that includes establishing hours of use; permitted 
uses; length of time for use; prohibited activities; and, enforcement authority.  La Lomita park permit 
applications must be submitted a minimum of 10 days prior to an event; and, there is no fee to process 
a La Lomita park permit application.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.  
Continued from the January 9, 2020, Regular Council Meeting. 
 
5. SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES UPDATE:  Staff will provide an update on the public 
notification process related to changes in trash and recycling services and related administrative, billing 
and public works services.  Right Away Disposal will begin providing trash and recycling services 
beginning on March 1, 2020.  Council may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.   
 
6. COMMUNITY SERVICE AWARDS:   Councilmembers will discuss their nominations for 
presenting a community volunteer award to individuals or organizations who exemplify true 
humanitarianism, commitment to Guadalupe, and have made a significant impact through on-going 
dedicated volunteer efforts impacting Guadalupe community members.  Council will consider 
presenting award recognitions at the February 8, 2020, Dia de Guadalupe event.  Council may 
approve their nominations and may provide direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.  There is no material 
for this agenda item. 

7. AMENDMENT NO 1. TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
BETWEEN MARICOPA COUNTY ADMINISTERED BY ITS HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND 
THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE (C2019-24):  Council will consider and may take action to adopt 
Amendment No. 1 to the IGA C2019-24 between the Town of Guadalupe and Maricopa County, 
administered by its Human Services Department, for the Guadalupe Street Repavement Project Phase 
VII (CDBG19GD).  If approved, this amendment would revise the scope of the project to include 
installation of new speed humps on the following streets: S. Calle Tomi and W. Calle Senu.  Adoption 
of this resolution authorizes the Mayor to execute all documents in furtherance of this amendment. 

 
H. TOWN MANAGERS’ COMMENTS 
 
I. COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT 

 

http://www.guadalupeaz.org/


January 17, 2020 

To:  The Honorable Mayor and Town Council  

From:  Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk  

RE:  January 23, 2020, Town Council Regular Meeting Information Report  

The purpose of this report is to provide brief information regarding each of the meeting’s agenda items. 

Agenda Items: 

G1. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE:   The Fiscal Year (FY) 2018/2019 Audit for the Town of Guadalupe will be 
presented by Matt Bingham of Colby & Powell, PLC.  The presentation will illustrate the Town’s financial position as of 
June 30, 2019.   To note, the Town’s overall financial status improved by the slightest of margins.  Overall, the Town’s 
finances and accounting are in proper form, with the audit finding no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  
A key amount, referencing Page 8 of the Annual Financial Statement, the Town’s Governmental Activities or General 
Fund experienced a deficit reduction from $712,382 to $612,409.   While this is a slight improvement, the Town’s overall 
finances remain strained.  This slight improvement occurred without addressing needed repairs, improvements, and 
providing for employee compensation.   The upcoming FY2020/21 budget process will focus on revenues, project and 
programming expenditures, and employee compensation.  This audit offers professional confirmation of the Town’s 
financial condition.   Attachment A:  Annual Financial Statement and Auditors’ Reports for June 30, 2019 (pages 
19-103); Attachment B:  Expenditure and Limitation Report (Pages 104-110); Attachment C:  Power point
presentation (Pages 111-122)

G2. ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION HOUSE DEMOLITION: Council will consider the staff 
recommendation to grant the State of Arizona, through its Department of Transportation (ADOT), an exclusive into a 
Temporary Construction Easement (TCE) for construction, or more specifically, demolition of the Town-owned house 
located at 9050 South Calle Bella Vista, Guadalupe, AZ.  Demolition of this house is needed to provide space to widen 
the Guadalupe Road bridge over I-10.  This widening will allow for the construction of a sidewalk on the north side of 
the bridge.  With the widening of the bridge, a wider embankment is required. Notably, the south half of the house is 
presently built on ADOT right-of-way while the north half is built on Town-owned land.  This TCE allows ADOT 
contractors to enter onto Town property to demolish the entire house.  The house once was used for transitional 
housing purposes but has been vacant and a target of vandalism for a number of years.   The cost of this TCE to the 
Town is $1.00.  (Pages 123-124)   

G3. AWARD OF BID – RIGHT OF WAY SERVICES:   Council will consider the staff recommendation to award a 
two-year contract not to exceed $80,000 to Consultant Engineering, Inc (CEI).  This contract, if approved, will provide 
property acquisition services for required temporary construction easements and other property rights, if needed, for 
construction and improvement of Avenida del Yaqui, from Calle Cerritos to Calle Carmen; and, shall ensure that all 
specified requirements of federal, state, and local regulations related to municipal land acquisition are satisfied.  TCE’s 
allow contractors to enter onto private property for a defined period of time so construction can occur adjacent to private 
property.     

The staff recommendation is the result of a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) soliciting statements of qualifications  from 
qualified firms through a qualifications-based selection process, as described in ARS § 34-603.  The attached “Avenida 
del Yaqui Right of Way Services Contract Recommendation Report” provides an overview of the RFQ process and 
evaluation.   

Page 3



 
 

2 
 

This task and related cost is the responsibility of the Town of Guadalupe and is budgeted in the Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2019/20 HURF cost center at $59,877 with the remainder projected for FY2020/21.  Overall, the $3.5 
million Avenida del Yaqui street improvement project is a federally funded project that is programmed regionally 
through the Maricopa Association of Governments, and managed by the Arizona Department of Transportation.   
Design and engineering is underway and construction is expected to begin in 2021.    Avenida del Yaqui Right 
of Way Services Contract Recommendation Report (Pages 125-126); CEI Contract (Pages 127-128) 
 
G4. LA LOMITA USE PERMIT (ORDINANCE NO. O2020.01):  Council may review and may adopt an ordinance 
related to park permitting requirements that includes establishing hours of use; permitted uses; length of time for use; 
prohibited activities; and, enforcement authority.  La Lomita park permit applications must be submitted a minimum of 
10 days prior to an event; and, there is no fee to process a La Lomita park permit application.  Council may provide 
direction to the Town Manager / Clerk.  Continued from the January 9, 2020, Regular Council Meeting.  Ordinance 
(Pages 129-134); Rules and Regulations (Pages 135-136)  

 
G5. SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES UPDATE:  Staff will provide an update on the public notification 
process related to changes in services and service provider for solid waste collection services, which will begin on 
March 1, 2020.  The attached notice will be distributed in water bills on February 4, 11, 18, and 25 and will be available 
at Town and partner front counters, the Town Facebook websites, and the Town website.   
 
At the January 9, 2020, Regular Council Meeting, the Council awarded a 10-year contract for solid waste disposal 
services contract to RAD, Right Away Disposal Service for the following services: 
 

1. Twice per week curbside solid waste service and no curbside recycling service at a monthly fee of $20.14. 
2. Maintain the current $20.75 monthly fee resulting in no fee increase for 18 months through June 2021.   
3. Apply the 61 cents to the anticipated fee increases in FY2021/22. 
4. Maintain monthly billing through the City of Tempe.  
5. Provide a recycling rolloff at the Town Maintenance Yard for voluntary recycling. 
6. Provide 2 rolloffs for public disposal and 2 rolloffs for Town disposal at the Town Maintenance Yard. 
7. Provide quarterly community rolloffs at 8 locations throughout Town. 
8. Establish annual street, sidewalk and alley repair fund in Solid Waste cost center by including an 8% 

administration assessment in the monthly fees.    
(Pages 137-140) 
 
G6. COMMUNITY SERVICE AWARDS:   At the January 9, 2020, Regular Council Meeting, Councilmembers 
agreed that they will each have an opportunity to nominate one individual or organization to receive a Community 
Service Award at the February 8, 2020 Dia de Guadalupe community event. Criteria for the award is individuals 
or organizations who exemplify true humanitarianism, commitment to Guadalupe, and have made a significant 
impact through on-going dedicated volunteer efforts impacting those in Guadalupe.   
 
The following nominees have been proposed by the Town Council:  

• Miguel Alvarado,     
• Armenta Family / Guadalupanos  
• Socorro Bernasconi 
• Christina Puzaukas, Flight 33  
• Vacaneri Family 
• Max Valencia 
• Alma Vital-Johnson  

 
There is no material for this agenda item. 
 
  

Page 4



 
 

3 
 

G7.    AMENDMENT NO 1. TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES BETWEEN 
MARICOPA COUNTY ADMINISTERED BY ITS HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND THE TOWN OF 
GUADALUPE (C2019-24):  Amendment No. 1 to the IGA C2019-24 between the Town of Guadalupe and Maricopa 
County, administered by its Human Services Department, is for the Guadalupe Street Repavement Project Phase VII 
(CDBG19GD).  If adopted the amendment would revise the scope of the project to include installation of new speed 
humps on the following streets: S. Calle Tomi and W. Calle Senu.   

On September 12, 2019, Town Council through Resolution No. R2019.17 entered into IGA C2019-24 for the Guadalupe 
Street Repavement Project Phase VII (CDBG19GD), which consists of removing and replacing approximately 11,673 
square yards of asphalt on six (6) 30-foot streets from curb to curb on Calle Fortunado Serrano, Calle Juan Taeva, 
Calle Brigido Valenzuela, Calle Maximo Solarez, Ciculo S. Hernandez, and Jimenez Circle.  Design is presently 
underway.  Importantly, this IGA provides the Town of Guadalupe $438,873 of U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development Community Block Grant funds to fund the repaving project.  

Resolution No. R2019.17 (Page 141); Amendment No. 1 to IGA C2019-24 (Pages 142-143)  

Adoption of this amendment would add the installation of speed humps to Calle Tomi and Calle Senu, two streets not 
included in the original scope.  This allows funds from this project to be used for speed hump relocation and installation.    

At the December 12, 2019 Regular Council Meeting, Council considered a number of traffic safety suggestions.   
Councilmembers directed staff to proceed with Level 1 suggestions (items A, B, G, H, and I), to remove and replace 
traffic signage.  Council did not direct staff to pursue speed hump relocation.   
 
Adopting this amendment would allow funding for this option.   Installation of speed humps is estimated at $5,000 each.  
As discussed on December 12, it is possible any realized savings on this project could be used for pothole, crack 
sealing, and needed street repairs, as approved by the County as of last year’s repaving project.   

The December 12, 2019 traffic safety suggestions are illustrated and summarized as follows:  

 
 

 

Page 5



 
 

4 
 

 
Suggestions & Locations 

 
A. Replace existing 20 miles per hour (mph) speed limit sign with 25 mph speed limit sign – Calle Vahi east of 
Avenida del Yaqui.   
B. Install pedestrian warning sign – Calle Senu approximately 100 feet east of Avenida del Yaqui 
C. Relocate speed hump to Calle Senu –  approximately 215 feet west of the Calle Senu and Calle Naki 

intersection.  
D. Install new speed hump on Calle Senu – approximately 190 feet east of the Calle Senu and Calle Naki 
intersection.  
E. Relocate speed hump – approximately 65 feet south of the south Calle Tomi and Calle Fortunato Serrano 
intersection. 
F. Relocate speed hump – approximately 95 feet north of the north Calle Tomi and Calle Fortunato Serrano 
intersection. 
G. Remove existing sign – Calle Tomi north of Calle Senu.  
H. Remove existing sign and replace with pedestrian sign – Calle Tomi south of Calle Fortunato  Serrano. 
I. Remove and replace existing sign with speed limit sign – Calle Tomi south of Calle Guadalupe. 

 
 
 
 

Page 6



December 17, 2019 

Honorable Members of 

the Guadalupe Town Council 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 

activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of 

Guadalupe, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019.  Professional standards require 

that we provide information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing 

standards and Government Auditing Standards as well as certain information related to the 

planned scope and timing of our audit.  We have communicated such information in our letter to 

you dated August 22, 2019.  Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the 

following information related to our audit. 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The 

significant accounting policies used by the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona are described in Note 1 

to the financial statements.   

We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the year for which there is 

a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized 

in the financial statements in the proper period.   

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 

completing our audit. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 

financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, 

that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to 

report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Page 7



Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are shown in attached 

management representation letter. 

Management Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 

accounting matters.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Uncorrected Misstatements 

There were no uncorrected misstatements, other than those that we believe were trivial to the 

financial statements as a whole. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

During our audit, we noted a lack of formal inventory procedures in place in the CAP office for 

food and other basic supplies. We recommend that the Town create and implement formal 

inventory procedures at the CAP office.  

Uniform Guidance outlines the requirements for federal programs. Under Uniform Guidance, 

entities receiving federal awards are required to have certain documented policies and procedures 

to ensure compliance with federal requirements. We recommend that management review its 

current policies and procedures to ensure that the Town remains in compliance with federal 

guidelines. 

Included in with the audited financial statements is our report issued in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards and also our report on compliance with Uniform Guidance. 

Please consult those reports for further details regarding our responsibilities with respect to your 

internal controls. 

This information is intended solely for the use of Town Council and management and is not 

intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide our services to the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona and 

please contact us if you have any questions or comments regarding this letter. 

Attachments 

Page 8



Town of Guadalupe 
9241 South Avenida Del Yaqui• Guadalupe, Arizona• 85283-2598 • Phone: (480) 730-3080 

December 17, 2019 

Colby and Powell, PLC 
1535 W. Harvard Ave., Ste. 101 
Gilbert, AZ 85233 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the 
Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, which comprise the respective financial position of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information as 
of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for 
the period then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing 
opinions as to whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). 

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are 
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting 
infmmation that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a 
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or 
misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered 
material as a result of qualitative factors. 

We confom, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of December 17, 2019, the following 
representations made to you during your audit. 

Financial Statements 

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated 
August 22, 2019, including our responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements and for preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable 
criteria. 

2) The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP and 
include all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary government and 
all component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the 
fmancial reporting entity. 

3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of fmancial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control to prevent and detect fraud. 

- 1 -

www.guadalupeaz.org • 1-800-367-8939 (TDD) 

Page 9



5) Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair 
value, are reasonable. 

6) Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans, 
transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related 
parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

7) Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of noncompliance, 
subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the 
financial statements. 

8) The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been accounted 
for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

9) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the Town is contingently liable, if any, have been 
properly recorded or disclosed. 

Information Provided 

10) We have provided you with: 

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, doclunentation, and other matters and all 
audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources. 

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the Town from whom you detennined it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence. 

d) Minutes of the meetings of the Town Council or summaries of actions of recent meetings for 
which minutes have not yet been prepared. 

11) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
financial statements. 

12) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

13) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the Town and involves-

a) Management, 

b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 

c) Others where the fraud could have a mateiial effect on the financial statements. 

14) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Town's financial 
statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others. 

- 2 -

Page 10



15) We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be considered 
when preparing financial statements. 

16) We have disclosed to yon all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose 
effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements. 

17) We have disclosed to you the identity of the Town's related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

Government-specific 

18) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or 
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices. 

19) We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to 
the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented. 

20) The Town has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of 
assets, liabilities, or equity. 

21) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal and contractual 
provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. 

22) We have identified and disclosed to yon all instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred, 
of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that we believe have a material 
effect on the financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, and any 
other instances that warrant the attention of those charged with governance. 

23) We have identified and disclosed to yon all instances, which have occurred or are likely to have 
occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data significant 
to the audit objectives. 

24) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred, 
of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the fmancial statements or other 
financial data significant to the audit objectives. 

25) There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including 
those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant 
agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for 
disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting 
on noncompliance. 

26) As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the financial statements and related notes. We 
acknowledge our responsibility as it relates to those nonandit services, including that we assume all 
management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably within 
senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy 
and results of the services performed; and accept responsibility for the results of the services. We 
have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for those financial statements and related notes. 

- 3 -

Page 11



27) The Town has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such 
assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 

28) The Town has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect 
on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance. 

29) The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an equity interest, 
and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations. 

30) The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 34. 

31) All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASBS Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major are 
identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly 
important to fmancial statement users. 

32) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and 
classifications of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned) are 
properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 

33) Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments are properly 
valued. 

34) Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded. 

35) Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the 
statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis. 

36) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, general 
revenues, contributions to term or pennanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund 
principal. 

37) Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and 
reported. 

38) Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and are 
properly disclosed. 

39) Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if 
applicable, depreciated or amortized. 

40) We have appropriately disclosed the Town's policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or 
umestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
umestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is properly recognized 
under the policy. 

41) We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is, restricted, 
committed, assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more 
than one resource classification is available. That policy determines the fund balance classifications 
for financial reporting purposes. 

- 4 -

Page 12



42) We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSI is 
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and 
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any 
significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI. 

43) We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have recommended, and they have been 
posted. 

44) In regard to the GASB 68 & 75 adjustment services performed by you, we have-

a) Assumed all management responsibilities. 

b) Designated Bob Thaxton, who has suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the services. 

c) Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services pe1formed. 

d) Accepted responsibility for the results of the services. 

45) With respect to federal award programs: 

a) We are responsible for understanding and complying with and have complied with, the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance), including requirements relating to preparation of the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards. 

b) We acknowledge our responsibility for preparing and presenting the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards (SEFA) and related notes in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance, and we believe the SEFA, including its form and content, is fairly presented in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance. The methods of measurement or presentation of the 
SEF A have not changed from those used in the prior period and we have disclosed to you any 
significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the 
SEFA. 

c) If the SEFA is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the audited 
financial statements readily available to the intended users of the SEF A no later than the date we 
issue the SEFA and the auditor's report thereon. 

d) We have identified and disclosed to you all of our government programs and related activities 
subject to the Unifonn Guidance compliance audit, and have included in the SEFA, expenditures 
made during the audit period for all awards provided by federal agencies in the form of federal 
awards, federal cost-reimbursement contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property (including donated 
surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct 
appropriations, and other direct assistance. 

e) We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the 
requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the tenns and conditions of federal awards 
related to each of our federal programs and have identified and disclosed to you the requirements 
of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that are considered 
to have a direct and material effect on each major program. 

- 5 -

Page 13



f) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained, 
effective internal control over compliance for federal programs that provides reasonable 
assurance that we are managing our federal awards in compliance with federal statutes, 
regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could have a material effect on 
our federal programs. We believe the internal control system is adequate and is functioning as 
intended. 

g) We have made available to you all federal awards (including amendments, if any) and any other 
correspondence with federal agencies or pass-through entities relevant to federal programs and 
related activities. 

h) We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific programs as a 
major program. 

i) We have complied with the direct and material compliance requirements, including when 
applicable, those set forth in the 0MB Compliance Supplement, relating to federal awards and 
confmn that there were no amounts questioned and no known noncompliance with the direct and 
material compliance requirements of federal awards. 

j) We have disclosed any communications from federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities 
concerning possible noncompliance with the direct and material compliance requirements, 
including communications received from the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to 
the date of the auditor's report. 

k) We have disclosed to you the fmdings received and related corrective actions taken for previous 
audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external monitoring that directly relate to the 
objectives of the compliance audit, including findings received and corrective actions taken from 
the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor's report. 

I) Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with relevant guidelines in 
OMB's Uniform Guidance (2 CFR part 200, subpart E). 

m) We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance requirements that may have varying 
interpretations. 

n) We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the direct and 
material compliance requirements, including information related to federal program financial 
reports and claims for advances and reimbursements. 

o) We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional evidence 
about conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period affecting noncompliance dming 
the reporting period. 

p) There are no such known instances of noncompliance with direct and material compliance 
requirements that occurred subsequent to the period covered by the auditor's report. 

q) No changes have been made in internal control over compliance or other factors that might 
significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action we have talcen regarding 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance, subsequent to 
the period covered by the auditor's report. 

- 6 -

Page 14



r) Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are supported by 
the books and records from which the financial statements have been prepared. 

s) The copies of federal program financial reports provided you are true copies of the reports 
submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or pass-through entity, as 
applicable. 

t) We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost principles. 

u) We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior audit findings 
to include all findings required to be included by the Uniform Guidance, and we have provided 
you with all information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit findings by federal awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities, including all management decisions. 

v) We are responsible for and have ensured the reporting package does not contain protected 
personally identifiable information. 

w) We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the auditee section of the Data Collection 
Form as required by the Uniform Guidance. 

x) We are responsible for taking corrective action on each audit finding of the compliance audit and 
have developed a corrective action plan that meets the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. 

Signature: 9rl { l /\----
Title: ~ <>-> J ;v14,,.,,Jkt",<.7/c. '- -c... l(...K...--

- 7 -

Page 15



Client: TOG - Town of Guadalupe, Arizona

Engagement: FY19 - Town of Guadalupe, Arizona

Period Ending: 6/30/2019

Trial Balance: TB

Workpaper: 370.01 - Adjusting Journal Entries Report

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2

01000022100000 Accrued Salaries & Wages Payable 13,692.18

01803060200000 Salaries & Wages 1,304.38

01804060200000 Salaries & Wages 895.67

01806060200000 Salaries & Wages 937.56

01808060200000 Salaries & Wages 350.76

01809060200000 Salaries & Wages 271.61

01813060200000 Salaries & Wages 207.82

01822060200001 Salaries & Wages 4,983.69

01822060200002 Reserve Firemen Salaries 2,188.76

01822060200003 Wildland Fire Salaries 1,734.32

01836060200000 Salaries & Wages 54.19

01855060200000 Salaries & Wages 763.42

Total 13,692.18 13,692.18

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3 001.2.02

01803062110000 Office Supplies 7.55

01803067080000 Miscellaneous Charges 300.00

01805067800000 Recognition & Awards 93.77

01805067810000 Celebration Exp-Special Events 347.74

01808067070000 Meetings & Business Expense 115.00

01810062280000 Operating Supplies 198.41

01813062280000 Other Operating Expense 380.72

01813062310000 Building Repairs & Supplies 147.70

01822062280002 EMS Disposal Supplies 33.81

01822062280003 Wild Land Supplies/Training 406.30

01822062400002 EMS Small Tools & Equipment 35.98

18832067100000 Equipment Repair 184.59

25000020200000 Site Council Payable 36.52

25842162110000 Office Expense 2.91

25842162240000 Food Supplies 71.19

25842262110000 Office Expense 0.75

25842262240000 Food Supplies 22.29

25842362110000 Office Expense 7.11

27844062110000 Office Expense 198.51

27844062350000 Auto Repairs & Supplies 86.21

27844062400000 Small Tools & Equipment 369.89

27844065100000 PYT Grant 5.38

27844065100000 PYT Grant 17.82

27844065100000 PYT Grant 89.81

01000020100000 Accounts Payable 2,066.98

18000020100000 Accounts Payable 184.59

25000020100000 Accounts Payable 140.77

27000020100000 Accounts Payable 629.27

27844062350000 Auto Repairs & Supplies 55.73

27844065100000 PYT Grant 82.62

Total 3,159.96 3,159.96

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 4 027.5.10

27000020280003 CAP PYT Grant 38,316.36

Clear out amount stuck in accrued wages

Accrue additional accounts payable

Reclass grant revenue for PYT CAP

1 of 3

Page 16



Client: TOG - Town of Guadalupe, Arizona

Engagement: FY19 - Town of Guadalupe, Arizona

Period Ending: 6/30/2019

Trial Balance: TB

Workpaper: 370.01 - Adjusting Journal Entries Report

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

27000043800000 CAP PYT Grant 38,316.36

Total 38,316.36 38,316.36

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 5

01000012100000 Accounts Receivable 13,033.89

01000043800000 Other Rev. from Gov. Agencies 13,033.89

Total 13,033.89 13,033.89

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 6

01000012100028 DES Receivable-Monthly 1,324.73

01000020300001 Deferred Revenue 120.43

01000049200000 Rents & Concessions 1,445.16

Total 1,445.16 1,445.16

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 7

60000019300000 Amount To Be Provided 6,629.78

60000025230000 Bond Premium 6,629.78

Total 6,629.78 6,629.78

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 8

80000015000000 Construction in Progress 34,206.18

80000039900000 Investment in Fixed Assets 85,294.18

80000015100000 Land 34,206.18

80000015400000 Machinery & Equipment 77,487.58

80000015600000 Building Improvements 7,806.60

Total 119,500.36 119,500.36

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 9

47880062310000 Building Repair & Supplies 3,300.00

47000015600000 Tianguis Improvements 3,300.00

Total 3,300.00 3,300.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 10

80809067610000 Depreciation Expense 30,623.30

80000015120000 Accumulated Depr Land Improv 30,623.30

Total 30,623.30 30,623.30

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 11

47000014100000 Net Pension and OPEB assets 52.48

47000019990000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,836.62

47000025000000 Net Pension Liability 23,285.56

Accrue AR for wildland fires

Reclass DES rents

Adj bond premium amortization

Adjust GFA to actuals per audit testing

Reclass asset back to expense (SanDigeo Bay A/C) due to amount 

not meeting capitalization threshhold.

Client Entry: Adjust depreciation for GFA

Adjustment for GASB 68/75

2 of 3

Page 17



Client: TOG - Town of Guadalupe, Arizona

Engagement: FY19 - Town of Guadalupe, Arizona

Period Ending: 6/30/2019

Trial Balance: TB

Workpaper: 370.01 - Adjusting Journal Entries Report

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

47000029990000 Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,373.76

50000014100000 Net Pension and OPEB assets 146.52

50000019990000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 10,711.38

50000025000000 Net Pension Liability 65,010.44

50000029990000 Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,627.24

47000014100000 Net Pension and OPEB assets 81.49

47000019990000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,119.86

47000025000000 Net Pension Liability 21,537.88

47000029990000 Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,179.43

47880061200000 Pension Expense 629.76

50000014100000 Net Pension and OPEB assets 227.51

50000019990000 Deferred Outflows of Resources 11,502.14

50000025000000 Net Pension Liability 60,131.12

50000029990000 Deferred Inflows of Resources 8,876.57

50837061200000 Pension Expense 1,758.24

Total 112,044.00 112,044.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 12

47000013000000 Allowance for Doubtful Account 15,000.00

47880067620000 Bad Debt Expense 15,000.00

Total 15,000.00 15,000.00

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 13

40000028000001 Unearned Rev.-Due from Habitat 35,404.44

40000049500000 Mortgage Payments Received 35,404.44

Total 35,404.44 35,404.44

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 14 090.5.60

90000049500007 FEMA Grant-SAFER 57,652.84

90000020300001 Unavailable grant revenue 57,652.84

Total 57,652.84 57,652.84

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 15

01805069110000 Lease Copier Payment 1,520.13

01813068600000 Machinery & Equipment 6,740.00

01862068300000 Buildings 6,740.00

01862069110000 Lease Payments-Copier 1,520.13

Total 8,260.13 8,260.13

Reclass SAFER revenue to unavailable

Client entry-Reclass AC units and copier lease payments

Adjust unearned revenues related to Habitat to recognize current 

year principal payments

Write off allowance for Tianguis fund AR

3 of 3

Page 18



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Annual Financial Statements 

and 

Independent Auditors’ Report 

June 30, 2019 

Attachment A

Page 19



 

 

 

 

Page 20



 

 

 
 

 

Page 21



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  ............................................................................... 1 

 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis – Required Supplementary 

 Information ......................................................................................................................... 5 

 

Government-wide Statements 

Statement of Net Position ................................................................................................... 16 

Statement of Activities ........................................................................................................ 17 

 

Fund Statements 

Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet ................................................................................................................ 18 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the 

Statement of Net Position ....................................................................................... 19 

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances ......................... 20 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances to the Government-

wide Statement of Activities ................................................................................... 21 

 

Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Net Position ............................................................................................. 22 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position ......................... 23 

Statement of Cash Flows .............................................................................................. 24 

 

Notes to Financial Statements  ............................................................................................ 26 

 

Other Required Supplementary Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedules ...................................................................................... 58 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules ........................................................................ 61 

Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension/OPEB 

Liability – Cost-Sharing Pension Plans ........................................................................ 62 

Schedule of Changes in the Town’s Net Pension/OPEB Liability 

(Asset) and Related Ratios – Agent Pension Plans ....................................................... 64 

Schedule of Town Pension/OPEB Contributions ............................................................... 66 

Notes to Pension/OPEB plan schedules .............................................................................. 68 
 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial 

Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 

Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Governmental 

Auditing Standards ............................................................................................................. 72 

 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for each Major Program and 

on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform 

Guidance ............................................................................................................................. 74 

Page 22



 

 

 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ........................................................................... 76 

 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ............................................................ 77 

 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ............................................................................. 78 

 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings .................................................................... 79 

 

 

Page 23



 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank 

 
 

 

Page 24



 

- 1 - 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

To the Town Council  

Town of Guadalupe, Arizona 

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 

business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 

Town of Guadalupe, Arizona as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to 

the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s basic 

financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 

internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 

Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

Page 25



 

- 2 - 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinions. 

 

Opinions 

 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 

major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, 

as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash 

flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America.  

 

Other Matters 

 

Required Supplementary Information 

 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (pgs 5 to 15), Budgetary Comparison Schedules (pgs 58 

to 61) , Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension/OPEB Liability – Cost-

Sharing Pension Plans (pgs 62 to 63), Schedule of Changes in the Town’s Net Pension/OPEB 

Liability and Related Ratios – Agent Pension Plans (pgs 64 to 65), and the Schedule of Town 

Pension/OPEB Contributions (pgs 66 to 67) be presented to supplement the basic financial 

statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 

the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 

financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 

economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 

supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 

preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 

responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 

during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 

assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Other Information 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s basic financial statements. The 

schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as 

required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is not a 

required part of the basic financial statements. 

 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was 

derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 

the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 

Page 26



 

- 3 - 

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 

comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 

records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 

accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal 

awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 

whole. 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 

December 17, 2019, on our consideration of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s internal control 

over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is 

solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 

That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 

Standards in considering the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s internal control over financial 

reporting and compliance. 

 

Other Reporting Required by Arizona Revised Statutes 

 

In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the 

Town failed to use highway user revenue fund monies received by the Town pursuant to Arizona 

Revised Statutes Title 28, Chapter 18, Article 2 and any other dedicated state transportation 

revenues received by the Town solely for the authorized transportation purposes, insofar as they 

relate to accounting matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining 

knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other 

matters may have come to our attention regarding the Town’s noncompliance with the use of 

highway user revenue fund monies and other dedicated state transportation revenues, insofar as 

they relate to accounting matters. 

 
December 17, 2019 

Page 27



 

- 4 - 

 

This page is intentionally left blank 

 

Page 28



 TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 5 - 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 

We (the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona) are pleased to provide an overview of our financial 

activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.  The intended purpose of the Management 

Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to provide an introduction to the basic financial statements 

and notes, that provides an objective and easy to read analysis of our financial activities based on 

currently known facts, decisions, and conditions, by providing an easily readable summary of 

operating results and reasons for changes, which will help to determine if our financial position 

improved or deteriorated over the past year.  This report addresses current operational activities, 

the sources, uses, and changes in resources, adherence to budget, service levels, limitations, 

significant economic factors, and the status of infrastructure and its impacts on our debt and 

operation.  When referring to prior year data in this analysis we will be drawing upon 

information from last year’s audited financial reports. 

 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

 

The financial section of the Annual Financial Report (AFR) for the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona 

consists of this discussion and analysis, the basic financial statements and the required 

supplementary schedules presented after the basic financial statements.  The basic financial 

statements include the government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, 

including the budgetary statements for the general fund and major special revenue funds and 

notes to the basic financial statements. 

 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are 

designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s 

finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. 

 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s 

assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, 

increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 

position of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona is improving or deteriorating. 

 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position 

changed during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as 

the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash 

flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only 

result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave). 

 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town of 

Guadalupe, Arizona that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues 

(governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant 

portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental 

activities of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona include general government, public safety, public 

works and streets, culture and recreation, community development, health and welfare and debt 

service-interest.  The business-type activities include the Town’s refuse, sewer operations and a 

commercial center.  

Page 29



 TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 6 - 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 16 and 17 of this report. 

 

Fund financial statements.  Also presented are the traditional financial statements for 

governmental funds.  The fund financial statements focus on major funds of the Town.  A fund is 

a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 

segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, like other state 

and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 

finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona can be 

divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

 

Governmental funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same 

functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  

However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial 

statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances 

of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in 

evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.  Since the governmental fund 

financial statements focus on near-term spendable resources, while the governmental activities 

on the government-wide financial statements have a matching focus, a reconciliation of the 

differences between the two is provided with the fund financial statements. 

 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18 to 21 of this report. 

 

Proprietary funds.  The Town of Guadalupe, Arizona maintains three different proprietary 

funds.  Proprietary funds, also known as enterprise funds, are used to report the same functions 

presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  The Town of 

Guadalupe, Arizona uses enterprise funds to account for its refuse, sewer and commercial center 

operations. 

 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 

statements, only in more detail.  The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 

information for the refuse, sewer and commercial center operations.  All three funds are 

considered to be major funds of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona.  The basic proprietary fund 

financial statements can be both found on pages 22 to 25 of this report. 

 

Notes to the basic financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements (pages 26 to 55) 

provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 

government-wide and fund financial statements and should be read with the financial statements.

Page 30



 TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 7 - 

Required supplementary information other than MD&A.  Governments have an option of 

including the budgetary comparison statements for the General Fund and major special revenue 

funds as either part of the fund financial statements within the basic financial statements, or as 

required supplementary information after the footnotes.  The Town has chosen to present these 

budgetary statements as supplementary information after the footnotes.   

 

Financial Highlight 

 

 The assets of the Governmental Activities of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona 

exceeded its liabilities at close of the most recent fiscal year by $18,128,265 (net 

position).  Of this amount $38,286 is restricted for community service programs, 

$17,966,829 is invested in capital assets, net of related debt, and $735,559 is 

restricted for community development activities.  With recent changes in reporting 

State and public safety retirement obligations, the Town’s Governmental Activities 

unrestricted net position is at a deficit of ($612,409) which should improve over time 

due to increased contributions to those retirement plans.   

 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s 

governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $1,353,957 resulting 

in an increase  $57,261 in comparison with prior year.  The increase is a result of a 

slow but steady improvement of the local economy.  

 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund 

reflects a surplus of $1,272,977. 

Local sales tax and state-shared revenues received were greater than amounts budgeted.  Due to 

those increases in revenues the Town’s General Fund revenues were 4% higher than budgeted 

indicating a strong local economy.  General Fund expenses and transfers to other funds were 

$835,706 less than budgeted in large part due to contingency amounts not spent and transfers to 

other funds were lower than budgeted.   Because the Town has no property tax, it relies heavily 

on the current economy for its revenues.  In removing grant revenues and expenditures from the 

General Fund and creating a separate Grants Fund, the Town budgeted revenues and transfers in 

for the General Fund for fiscal year 2019 to be $708,363 lower than prior year.  This eliminated 

hopeful grant funded projects from distorting General Fund operations.  Likewise, budgeted 

expenditures and transfers out in the General Fund were $65,857 lower than prior year with a 

contingency amount created in the General Fund of $248,722. The local economy in Guadalupe 

did well with an increase of 12% over budget.  Restaurant and bar taxes alone were over budget 

by 17%.  A high return on investments yielded much better results than prior years. The Town’s 

management and budgetary committees continue to be conservative after the experience of the 

past couple of years in efforts to invest in capital improvements such as streets, buildings and 

public safety. 

Excess revenues over expenditures excluding transfers out were $1,022,686 higher than 

budgeted in the General Fund for fiscal year 2019.     

 

Page 31



 TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 8 - 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

 

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  The 

following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position of the Town for June 30, 2019 

showing that assets exceeded liabilities by $19,447,155. 

 

Town of Guadalupe, Arizona 

Condensed Statement of Net Position 

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018 

 
Governmental Business-Type Prior Year

Activities Activities Total June 30, 2018

ASSETS

Current and other assets 2,979,985$       1,191,079$       4,171,064$       4,266,799$       

Capital assets

Non-depreciable 7,073,380         84,703              7,158,083         7,134,872         

Depreciable (net) 12,254,863       189,499            12,444,362       12,044,739       

Total assets 22,308,228       1,465,281         23,773,509       23,446,410       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows related to pensions 573,619            14,548              588,167            632,963            

LIABILITIES

Other liabilities 898,548            61,975              960,523            1,066,960         

Non-current liabilities

Due  within one year 140,774            4,715                145,489            123,490            

Due in more than one year 3,442,387         82,193              3,524,580         3,967,809         

Total liabilities 4,481,709         148,883            4,630,592         5,158,259         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows related to pensions 271,873            12,056              283,929            161,420            

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 17,966,829       274,202            18,241,031       17,496,869       

Restricted for:

Community service 38,286              -                        38,286              1,631                

Community development 735,559            -                        735,559            862,240            

Unrestricted (deficit) (612,409)           1,044,688         432,279            398,954            

Total net position 18,128,265$     1,318,890$       19,447,155$     18,759,694$     

The unrestricted net position of the Governmental Activities for the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona 

has improved to a deficit of $(612,409) from the prior year of $(712,382). 

Page 32



 TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 9 - 

Comparative Analysis of Government-Wide Revenues and Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 

 

Governmental Business-Type Prior Year

   Activities Activities Total June 30, 2018

REVENUE

Program revenue:

Charges for services 319,323$          591,831$          911,154$          1,026,289$       

Grants and contributions 1,906,882         -                    1,906,882         1,328,781         

Total program revenue 2,226,205         591,831            2,818,036         2,355,070         

General revenue:

Sales taxes 2,127,078         -                    2,127,078         2,137,573         

Franchise tax 26,303              -                    26,303              26,574              

Bed taxes 364,824            -                    364,824            405,035            

Restaurant tax 292,579            -                    292,579            269,394            

State sales tax revenue sharing 656,929            -                    656,929            610,177            

Auto lieu tax revenue sharing 280,769            -                    280,769            262,424            

State revenue sharing 790,177            -                    790,177            784,774            

Interest income 30,145              24,416              54,561              32,068              

Miscellaneous 10,486              -                    10,486              15,530              

Total general revenue 4,579,290         24,416              4,603,706         4,543,549         

Total revenue 6,805,495         616,247            7,421,742         6,898,619         

EXPENSE

General government 1,070,486         -                    1,070,486         1,020,658         

Public safety 3,459,080         -                    3,459,080         3,146,777         

Public works and streets 690,765            -                    690,765            744,849            

Culture and recreation 150,687            -                    150,687            161,763            

Community development 296,884            -                    296,884            181,624            

Health and welfare 372,119            -                    372,119            352,541            

Interest on general long-term debt 38,408              -                    38,408              27,103              

Sewer -                    140,951            140,951            156,529            

Tianguis -                    161,164            161,164            131,490            

Refuse -                    353,737            353,737            326,756            

Total expenses 6,078,429         655,852            6,734,281         6,250,090         

Transfers 100,698            (100,698)           -                    -                    

Change in net position 827,764            (140,303)           687,461            648,529            

Beginning net position 17,300,501       1,459,193         18,759,694       18,380,559       

Ending net position 18,128,265$     1,318,890$       19,447,155$     19,029,088$     

Page 33



 TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 10 - 

Financial Analysis of the Town’s Funds 

 

Governmental Funds.  The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information 

on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of resources that are available for spending.  Such 

information is useful in assessing the Town’s financing requirements.  In particular, unassigned 

fund balance may serve as a useful measurement of a government’s net resources available for 

spending at the end of the fiscal year.  Types of governmental funds reported by the Town 

include the General Fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds and capital projects funds. 

 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending 

fund balances of $1,353,957, an increase of $57,261 in comparison with the prior year.  The 

increase is directly related to the increase in local sales taxes.  General Fund expenditures were 

decreased by $412,371 over prior year and revenues increased over prior year by $122,423.  

General Fund balance increased by $170,099 with a total fund balance of $1,305,690.  Local 

sales taxes increased over prior year by $282,084.  State-shared revenues increased from prior 

year by $52,155 generating an increase overall in the fund balance.  This trend indicates the 

importance of continuing to encouraging local commercial development and promoting current 

local businesses.  While it appears that the state and local economy are improving, the Town 

continues to budget conservatively. 

 
Balance at Increase/(Decrease)

Fund June 30, 2019 From 2017-18

General Fund 1,305,690$       170,099$          

Comm. Dev. Grants Fund 68,521              (90,953)             

Grants Fund (57,653)             (57,653)             

HURF/LTAF Fund (non-major) (184)                  (184)                  

Comm. Serv. Grants Fund (non-major) 37,583              35,952              

Debt Service Fund (non-major) -                    -                    

Capital Projects Fund (non-major) -                    -                     
 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona.  At the end of 

the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the General Fund was a surplus of $1,305,690, and the 

balance of all governmental funds increased to $1,353,957. 

 

The fund balance of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s General Fund increased by $170,099 

during the current fiscal year.  Key factors in this change are as follows: 

 

 Most General Fund revenues were over or at budget:  local sales taxes, franchise 

taxes, and restaurant and bar taxes were over budget by a total of $271,397.  As of 

budget year 2018/2019, grants are no longer budgeted in the General Fund but can be 

found in the Grants Fund.   

 

 One-time revenues are revenues that are not anticipated nor budgeted.  Those one-

time revenues that attributed to the surplus in the General Fund included a sales tax 

audit and revenues from building permits.   

Page 34



 TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 11 - 

 At year end, the General Fund revenues and other financing sources exceeded 

expenditures by $636,857.  However, transfers from the General Fund to pay the 

bond payment and interest in the amount of $292,245, from the General Fund to 

HURF in the amount of $48,947, from the General Fund to the Senior Center in the 

amount of $66,357, from the General Fund to the Community Action Program in the 

amount of $59,209 and resulted in General Fund revenues and other financing 

sources exceeding transfers and expenditures by $170,099.  As a result, the General 

Fund ended the year with a surplus of $1,305,690.   

 

 No departments were materially over budget.   

 

Proprietary Funds.  The Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s proprietary funds provide the same 

type of information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.   

 

Net position of the Refuse, Sewer and Tianguis Economic Development Funds at the end of the 

year amounted to $251,061, $1,024,873, and $42,956, respectively.  The total change in net 

position for the three funds was $(25,438), $(136,719) and $21,854, respectively.   

 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

 

The Town’s annual budget is the legally adopted expenditure control document of the Town.  

Budgetary comparison statements are required for the General Fund and all major special 

revenue funds and may be found on pages 58 to 61.  These statements compare the original 

adopted budget, the budget if amended during the fiscal year, and the actual revenues and 

expenditures. 

 

General Fund revenues of $5,044,527 were more than budgeted revenues of $4,837,333 by 

$207,194 while expenditures of $4,407,670 were less than budgeted expenses of $5,223,162 by 

$815,492.  The primary cause in the difference between the actual revenues and expenditures and 

the budgeted revenues and expenditures was the result of one-time revenues received, 

Administration costs being under budget and no contingency expenses were incurred. 

 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

 

The Town’s capital assets for its Governmental and Business-type Activities as of June 30, 2019 

amounted to $19,602,445 (net of accumulated depreciation).  For government-wide financial 

statement presentation, all depreciable capital assets were depreciated from acquisition date to 

the end of the current fiscal year.  Fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as 

expenditures.  See Note 5 in the notes to the basic financial statements for further information 

regarding capital assets.  The current year capital asset additions were as follows: 

 

 The Town entered into an agreement with Maricopa County Association of 

Governments and Arizona Department of Transportation to begin work on the 

Avenida del Yaqui Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvement Project.  The project will 

replace current curbs and sidewalk and add a bicycle lane in both the north bound 

and south bound lanes from Highline Canal south to Carmen.  The Avenue will be 

Page 35



 TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 12 - 

resurfaced and safety features will be added. The expenditures for fiscal year June 

30, 2019 amounted to $34,206.  As of June 30, 2019, the total projects costs are 

estimated to be $3,638,189. 

 During fiscal year 2019, the Town completed two flood control projects on Naranjo 

and Sahuaro for a total $480,989 using mostly State Flood Control grant funding. 

 With the use of Community Development Block grants, the Town repaired streets in 

the Sende Vista area of Town totaling $568,652. 

 Guadalupe Fire Department completed upgrading the new fire pumper with 

additional parts that totaled $27,133. 

 The Guadalupe Fire Department purchased a thermal imager with the use of a Fire 

House Subs grant that totaled $18,529. 

 With assistance from Maricopa County, the Town installed a drinking fountain in the 

Maricopa County Library-Guadalupe location for $6,000. 

 The Town received gaming funds to buy maintenance vehicles that amounted to 

$18,540. 

 During the year, the Town began replacing/repairing the Headstart and Senior Center 

roof.  At June 30, 2019 only the engineering costs were completed totaling $4,440. 

 The remaining purchases of $14,888 included a stove, air curtain and air 

conditioning units for the Senior Center. The following table provides a breakdown 

of the capital assets of the Town at June 30, 2019: 

 

Capital Assets at June 30, 2019 and 2018 

(Net of accumulated depreciation) 

 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Land 7,039,174$       7,039,174$       84,703$            84,703$            7,123,877$       7,123,877$       

Construction in

progress 34,206              10,995              -                    -                    34,206              -                    

Land improvements 2,234,150         1,879,777         -                    -                    2,234,150         1,879,777         

Buildings and

improvements 1,520,403         1,584,780         44,392              58,024              1,564,795         1,642,804         

Infrastructure 4,284,526         3,900,438         113,097            160,316            4,397,623         4,060,754         

Street lights 253,492            278,402            -                    -                    253,492            278,402            

Machinery and

equipment 807,280            867,508            32,010              44,814              839,290            912,322            

Curbs and gutters 3,155,012         3,270,680         -                    -                    3,155,012         3,270,680         

    Total 19,328,243$     18,831,754$     274,202$          347,857$          19,602,445$     19,168,616$     

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities Total

Page 36



 TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 13 - 

Long-term Debt 

 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona had total long-term 

obligations outstanding of $3,670,069.  Of that amount, $800,000 is outstanding loan debt and 

the loan premium of $46,092. The loan payable is secured by pledges of specific revenue sources 

of the Town.   Net pension liabilities in the amount of $2,216,562 will be paid down annually 

over the next twenty years.  Capital leases payable outstanding were $515,322.  Compensated 

absences payable to employees is equal to $92,093.  The following schedule shows the 

outstanding debt of the Town (both current and long-term) as of June 30, 2019.  Further detail on 

the Town’s outstanding debt may be found in Note 7 on pages 36 to 38. 

 

Outstanding Debt 

 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Compensated

absences 86,854$            63,406$            5,239$              3,433$              92,093$            66,839$            

Net pension and

OPEB liability 2,134,893         2,253,422         81,669              88,296              2,216,562         2,341,718         

Capital lease

payable 515,322            565,789            -                    -                    515,322            565,789            

Loans payable 846,092            1,116,953         -                    -                    846,092            1,116,953         

TOTAL 3,583,161$       3,999,570$       86,908$            91,729$            3,670,069$       4,091,299$       

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 

 

 State-shared revenue makes up 34% of the Town’s General Fund revenue. State-

shared revenue is expected to increase by 7% or $119,400 for fiscal year 2020.  More 

than half of this increase is Urban Revenue Sharing (State income taxes).  Urban 

Revenue Sharing is distributed two years after the State collects the funds.  

Therefore, this increase indicates that job growth and pay rates increased by 9% in 

2019 over 2017 as indicated in the 9% increase in Urban Revenue Sharing 

distributions.  State-shared sales taxes are forecasted to increase by 4%, or by 

$28,770.  All State-shared revenue estimates increased by a rate equal to last year 

indicating that the Arizona economy continues to grow, but at a slow pace. The 

Town of Guadalupe management and budget staff remain conservative in estimating 

revenues.   

 Local sales tax revenue, which makes up 42% of the General Fund revenue, is 

expected to decrease by 11% or $227,077.  This is in large part due to one-time tax 

collections in the 2018/2019 fiscal year.     

Page 37



 TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 14 - 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates (continued) 

 

 Because of the slow growth rate of the economy, the Town Council continued to 

make reductions in expenditures when the 2019-20 budget was prepared.  Revenues 

did exceed expenditures and transfers at fiscal year-end 2019; therefore, the Council 

did increase budgeted expenditures for capital outlays, public safety, parks 

improvements and community outreach programs. 

 The Town Council and staff will be preparing neighbors throughout Town for 

improvements to the main north/south bound arterial going through Town.  The 

improvements will include bike paths and sidewalk improvements on both sides as 

well as overlay on both lanes.  Guadalupe Road (East/West) will be getting 

improvements but on a smaller scale to keep it safe for pedestrians and motorists 

alike.  During fiscal year 2019, the fire department completed the upgrades needed to 

its new fire engine.  The Senior Center and Head Start building will be getting 

repairs to include a new roof and air conditioning units so that the programs can 

continue to provide much needed community services.     

 In efforts to promote businesses located in the Town’s Commercial Center, the Town 

Council and Town Manager have been holding numerous special events in and 

around the building.  It does appear that sales have been picking up and there is also 

a spike in interest of the vacant suites.  In addition, short-term patio rentals and 

multipurpose room rentals have increased by 240%, or by $20,857.  These activities 

also bring new clients to the Mercado that would not have otherwise been introduced 

to the local flavor that the shops provide. 

 The Town Council and the Town Manager have aggressively been seeking property 

developers to develop vacant land around Town in order to increase local sales tax 

revenues. 

 Management has been reviewing rental and long-term lease contracts as they come 

up for renewal to ensure the Town is getting fair market value from the activities. 

 And lastly, an assessment study will be done on the Town’s sewer system during 

fiscal year 2020 to determine conditions and provide grant and budgetary 

repair/replacement information.  The Town Council and Manager will also go out for 

bid for refuse services to begin in March of 2020 due to the current price increases in 

both solid waste and recycling.     

 

      

Page 38



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 15 - 

Financial contact 

 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all of 

those with an interest in the government’s finances and to demonstrate accountability for the use 

of public funds.  Questions about any of the information provided in this report, or requests for 

additional financial information should be addressed to: 

 

Town of Guadalupe, Arizona 

Finance Department 

9241 South Avenida del Yaqui 

Guadalupe, AZ 85283 

 

Or visit our website at: 

www.guadalupeaz.org

Page 39



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2019 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 16 - 

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1,742,116$    1,113,073$    2,855,189$    

Accounts receivable - net -                 5,788             5,788             

Taxes receivable - net 337,895         -                 337,895         

Miscellaneous receivables 40                  -                 40                  

Due from other governments 184,833         68,732           253,565         

Prepaid expenses 45,274           3,287             48,561           

Notes receivable - net 667,361         -                 667,361         

Net other postemployment benefits asset 2,466             199                2,665             

Capital assets, not being depreciated 7,073,380      84,703           7,158,083      

Capital assets, being depreciated, net 12,254,863    189,499         12,444,362    

Total assets 22,308,228    1,465,281      23,773,509    

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

573,619         14,548           588,167         

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 154,023         50,098           204,121         

Accrued expenses 81,597           3,989             85,586           

Court bonds payable 93,164           -                 93,164           

Unearned revenue 569,764         -                 569,764         

Refundable deposits -                 7,888             7,888             

Noncurrent liabilities

Due within 1 year 140,774         4,715             145,489         

Due in more than 1 year 3,442,387      82,193           3,524,580      

Total liabilities 4,481,709      148,883         4,630,592      

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

271,873         12,056           283,929         

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 17,966,829    274,202         18,241,031    

Restricted for:

Community service 38,286           -                 38,286           

Community development 735,559         -                 735,559         

Unrestricted (deficit) (612,409)        1,044,688      432,279         

Total net position 18,128,265$  1,318,890$    19,447,155$  

Deferred outflows related to pensions and 

other postemployment benefits

Deferred inflows related to pensions and 

other postemployment benefits

Page 40



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 17 - 

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital

for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total

Primary government:

Governmental activities

Public safety 3,459,080$           107,088$              105,084$              132,931$              (3,113,977)$          -$                      (3,113,977)$          

General government 1,070,486             177,585                102,208                -                        (790,693)               -                        (790,693)               

Public works and streets 690,765                -                        461,241                250,000                20,476                  -                        20,476                  

Health and welfare 372,119                -                        270,558                8,338                    (93,223)                 -                        (93,223)                 

Culture and recreation 150,687                34,650                  3,000                    -                        (113,037)               -                        (113,037)               

Community development 296,884                -                        4,870                    568,652                276,638                -                        276,638                

Interest on general long-term debt 38,408                  -                        -                        -                        (38,408)                 -                        (38,408)                 

Total governmental activities 6,078,429             319,323                946,961                959,921                (3,852,224)            -                        (3,852,224)            

Business-type activities

Sewer 140,951                80,514                  -                        -                        -                        (60,437)                 (60,437)                 

Tianguis 161,164                183,018                -                        -                        -                        21,854                  21,854                  

Refuse 353,737                328,299                -                        -                        -                        (25,438)                 (25,438)                 

Total business-type activities 655,852                591,831                -                        -                        -                        (64,021)                 (64,021)                 

Total primary government 6,734,281$           911,154$              946,961$              959,921$              (3,852,224)            (64,021)                 (3,916,245)            

General revenues:

Taxes:

Sales taxes 2,419,657             -                        2,419,657             

Bed taxes 364,824                -                        364,824                

Franchise taxes 26,303                  -                        26,303                  

State revenue sharing 790,177                -                        790,177                

State sales tax revenue sharing 656,929                -                        656,929                

Auto lieu tax revenue sharing 280,769                -                        280,769                

Interest income 30,145                  24,416                  54,561                  

Miscellaneous 10,486                  -                        10,486                  

Transfers 100,698                (100,698)               -                        

Total general revenues and transfers 4,679,988             (76,282)                 4,603,706             

Change in net position 827,764                (140,303)               687,461                

Net position, beginning of year 17,300,501           1,459,193             18,759,694           

Net position, end of year 18,128,265$         1,318,890$           19,447,155$         

Net (Expenses) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Functions / Programs

 

Page 41



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2019 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 18 - 

Community

Development Other Total

General Grants Grants Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1,540,910$     89,612$           67,871$           43,723$           1,742,116$      

Taxes receivable - net 337,895          -                  -                  -                  337,895           

Miscellaneous receivables 40                   667,361           -                  -                  667,401           

Due from other governments 54,908            400                  57,653             71,872             184,833           

Prepaid expenses 32,713            323                  -                  12,238             45,274             

Total assets 1,966,466       757,696           125,524           127,833           2,977,519        

Liabilities

Accounts payable 82,237            22                    -                  71,764             154,023           

Accrued expenses 59,944            -                  5,780               15,873             81,597             

Court bonds payable 93,164            -                  -                  -                  93,164             

Unearned revenue 425,431          21,792             119,744           2,797               569,764           

Total liabilities 660,776          21,814             125,524           90,434             898,548           

Deferred inflows of resources

Unavailable revenue -                  667,361           57,653             -                  725,014           

Fund balances

Nonspendable 32,713            323                  -                  12,238             45,274             

Restricted for:

Community development -                  68,198             -                  -                  68,198             

Community service -                  -                  -                  38,286             38,286             

Unassigned 1,272,977       -                  (57,653)           (13,125)           1,202,199        

Total fund balances 1,305,690       68,521             (57,653)           37,399             1,353,957        

Total liabilities, deferred inflows

of resources, and fund balances 1,966,466$     757,696$         125,524$         127,833$         2,977,519$      

Page 42



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 

Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2019 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 19 - 

 

Fund balances-total governmental funds 1,353,957$     

19,328,243     

725,014          

2,466              

(3,583,161)     

301,746          

Net position of governmental activities 18,128,265$   

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB and 

deferred charges or credits on debt refundings are applicable to future 

reporting periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are 

different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 

and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Some receivables are not available to pay for current-period expenditures 

and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenue in the funds.

Net pension assets held in trust for future benefits are not available for Town 

operations and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, such as net pension/OPEB liabilities and bonds 

payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not 

reported as liabilities in the funds.

Page 43



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 20 - 

Community

Development Other Total

General Grants Grants Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

Revenue

Intergovernmental 1,960,085$      568,652$         391,269$         722,414$         3,642,420$      

Taxes 2,810,783        -                  -                  -                  2,810,783        

Charges for services 156,625           -                  -                  -                  156,625           

Other revenue 27,749             40,374             -                  9,385               77,508             

Licenses and permits 38,349             -                  -                  -                  38,349             

Interest 23,420             -                  -                  6,725               30,145             

Fines and forfeitures 27,516             -                  -                  -                  27,516             

Total revenue 5,044,527        609,026           391,269           738,524           6,783,346        

 

Expenditures  

Current  

Public safety 3,221,727        -                  72,653             -                  3,294,380        

General government 975,617           -                  6,399               -                  982,016           

Health and welfare -                  -                  -                  360,172           360,172           

Public works and streets 12,071             -                  -                  334,064           346,135           

Community development 38,647             131,327           -                  -                  169,974           

Culture and recreation 151,988           -                  -                  -                  151,988           

Debt Service

Principal 1,330               -                  49,137             245,000           295,467           

Interest 190                  -                  16,834             47,245             64,269             

Capital outlay 6,100               568,652           303,899           283,731           1,162,382        

Total expenditures 4,407,670        699,979           448,922           1,270,212        6,826,783        

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue  

over (under) expenditures 636,857           (90,953)           (57,653)           (531,688)         (43,437)           

 

Other financing sources (uses)  

Transfers in (out) (466,758)         -                  -                  567,456           100,698           

Net change in fund balances 170,099           (90,953)           (57,653)           35,768             57,261             

Fund balances, beginning of year 1,135,591        159,474           -                  1,631               1,296,696        

Fund balances, end of year 1,305,690$      68,521$           (57,653)$         37,399$           1,353,957$      

Page 44



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 

Governmental Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 21 - 

Net change in fund balances-total governmental funds 57,261$       

Capital outlay 1,162,382    

Depreciation expense (665,893)      

496,489       

Change in unavailable revenue 57,653         

Change in HOME note receivables (35,504)        

22,149         

Town pension/OPEB contributions 250,617       

Pension/OPEB expense (296,632)      

(46,015)        

Debt principal repayments 295,467       

Amortization of loan premium 25,861         

321,328       

Increase in compensated absences payable (23,448)        

Change in net position of governmental activities 827,764$     

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt 

increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of debt principal 

is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term 

liabilities in the statement of net position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of 

premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is issued, whereas these amounts are 

amortized in the statement of activities.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds, 

expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with 

expendable available resources. In the statement of activities, however, which is presented 

on the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are reported regardless of when the financial 

resources are available.

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different 

because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of 

activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported 

as depreciation expense.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are 

not reported as revenues in the funds.

Town pension/OPEB contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds 

when made. However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the statement 

of net position because the reported net pension/OPEB liability is measured a year before 

the Town's report date. Pension/OPEB expense, which is the change in the net 

pension/OPEB liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources 

related to pensions/OPEB, is reported in the statement of activities.

 

Page 45



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 

June 30, 2019 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 22 - 

Tianguis

Sewer Econ. Dev. Refuse

Fund Fund Fund Total

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 889,509$         -$                223,564$         1,113,073$      

Accounts receivable - net -                      5,788               -                      5,788               

Due from other governments 13,544             -                  55,188             68,732             

Prepaid expenses 313                  1,923               1,051               3,287               

Due from other funds 41,615             -                  -                  41,615             

Total current assets 944,981           7,711               279,803           1,232,495        

Noncurrent assets

Net other postemployment benefits asset 147                  52                    -                  199                  

Capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation, where applicable:

Land -                  84,703             -                  84,703             

Utilities systems, net 145,107           -                  -                  145,107           

Buildings, net -                  44,392             -                  44,392             

Total noncurrent assets 145,254           129,147           -                  274,401           

Total assets 1,090,235        136,858           279,803           1,506,896        

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

10,711             3,837               -                  14,548             

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Accounts payable 29                    21,327             28,742             50,098             

Accrued expenses 2,546               1,443               -                  3,989               

Refundable deposits -                  7,888               -                  7,888               

Compensated absences - current portion 4,041               674                  -                  4,715               

Due to other funds -                  41,615             -                  41,615             

Total current liabilities 6,616               72,947             28,742             108,305           

Noncurrent liabilities

Compensated absences 449                  75                    -                  524                  

Net pension and other postemployment benefits liability 60,131             21,538             -                  81,669             

Total noncurrent liabilities 60,580             21,613             -                  82,193             

Total liabilities 67,196             94,560             28,742             190,498           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

8,877               3,179               -                  12,056             

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 145,107           129,095           -                  274,202           

Unrestricted (deficit) 879,766           (86,139)           251,061           1,044,688        

Total net position 1,024,873$      42,956$           251,061$         1,318,890$      

Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds

Deferred outflows related to pensions 

and other postemployment benefits

Deferred inflows related to pensions 

and other postemployment benefits

 

Page 46



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Proprietary Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 23 - 

Tianguis

Sewer Econ. Dev. Refuse

Fund Fund Fund Total

Operating revenues

Charges for services 80,514$           -$                328,299$         408,813$         

Rents -                  183,018           -                  183,018           

Total operating revenues 80,514             183,018           328,299           591,831           

Operating expenses

Professional services 251                  602                  352,572           353,425           

Personnel 78,903             28,980             -                  107,883           

Depreciation 60,024             13,632             -                  73,656             

Utilities 388                  58,722             -                  59,110             

Repairs and maintenance 840                  34,122             -                  34,962             

Materials and supplies -                  17,728             -                  17,728             

Miscellaneous 147                  4,892               -                  5,039               

Insurance 398                  2,486               1,165               4,049               

Total operating expenses 140,951           161,164           353,737           655,852           

Operating income (loss) (60,437)           21,854             (25,438)           (64,021)           

Nonoperating revenue

Investment income 24,416             -                  -                  24,416             

Income (loss) before transfers (36,021)           21,854             (25,438)           (39,605)           

Transfers (100,698)         -                  -                  (100,698)         

Increase (decrease) in net position (136,719)         21,854             (25,438)           (140,303)         

Total net position, beginning of year 1,161,592        21,102             276,499           1,459,193        

Total net position, end of year 1,024,873$      42,956$           251,061$         1,318,890$      

Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds

 

Page 47



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 24 - 

Tianguis

Sewer Econ. Dev. Refuse

Fund Fund Fund Total

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers 100,570$         176,064$       409,210$       685,844$         

Payments to suppliers and providers of

goods and services (3,990)             (119,003)        (331,156)        (454,149)         

Payments to employees (77,374)           (28,233)          -                 (105,607)         

Net cash provided (used) by

operating activities 19,206             28,828           78,054           126,088           

Cash flows from noncapital

financing activities:

Interfund transfer (100,698)         -                 -                 (100,698)         

Interfund loans 28,828             (28,828)          -                 -                  

Net cash provided by (used by)

noncapital financing activities (71,870)           (28,828)          -                 (100,698)         

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received on investments 24,416             -                 -                 24,416             

Net increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents (28,248)           -                 78,054           49,806             

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 917,757           -                 145,510         1,063,267        

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 889,509$         -$               223,564$       1,113,073$      

Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds

 
 

 

 

Page 48



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Statement of Cash Flows  

Proprietary Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

(Continued) 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

- 25 - 

Tianguis

Sewer Econ. Dev. Refuse

Fund Fund Fund Total

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (60,437)$         21,854$         (25,438)$        (64,021)$         

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 

net cash provided by (used by) operating activities:

Depreciation 60,023             13,632           -                 73,655             

Changes in assets, deferred outflows

of resources, liabilities, and deferred

inflows of resources:

Accounts receivable -                  (5,788)            -                 (5,788)             

Due from other governments 20,056             -                 80,911           100,967           

Prepaid expenses (208)                (1,421)            (123)               (1,752)             

Net pension and other postemployment

benefits asset 81                    29                  -                 110                  

Deferred outflows of resources related to 

pensions and other postemployment 

benefits 791                  283                -                 1,074               

Accounts payable -                  1,601             22,704           24,305             

Accrued expenses 68                    402                -                 470                  

Refundable deposits -                  (1,166)            -                 (1,166)             

Compensated absences payable 1,461               345                -                 1,806               

Net pension and other postemployment

benefits liability (4,879)             (1,748)            -                 (6,627)             

Deferred inflows of resources related to 

pensions and other postemployment 

benefits 2,250               805                -                 3,055               

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 19,206$           28,828$         78,054$         126,088$         

Business-type Activities--Enterprise Funds

 

Page 49



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 26 - 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

The accounting policies of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, conform to generally accepted 

accounting principles applicable to governmental units adopted by the Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB). A summary of the Town’s significant accounting policies are as 

follows. 

 

A. Reporting Entity 

 

The Town is a general-purpose local government that is governed by a separately elected Town 

Council. The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the Town (the primary 

government) and its component units. 

 

Component units are legally separate entities for which the Town is considered to be financially 

accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part 

of the Town’s operations. Therefore, data from these units is combined with data of the primary 

government. The component unit discussed below has a June 30 year-end. 

 

The Town of Guadalupe Municipal Property Corporation is an Arizona nonprofit 

corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Arizona. The principal objective 

of the Corporation is to assist the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, in acquiring, 

constructing, operating, improving or modifying public facilities for the benefit of all the 

Town of Guadalupe, Arizona residents. The Town of Guadalupe Municipal Property 

Corporation is a blended component unit. 

 

B. Basis of Presentation 

 

The basic financial statements include both government-wide statements and fund financial 

statements. The government-wide statements focus on the Town as a whole, while the fund 

financial statements focus on major funds. Each presentation provides valuable information that 

can be analyzed and compared between years and between governments to enhance the 

usefulness of the information. 

 

Government-wide statements – provide information about the primary government (the Town) 

and its component units. The statements include a statement of net position and a statement of 

activities. These statements report the financial activities of the overall government. They also 

distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Town and between the 

Town and its discretely presented component units. Governmental activities generally are 

financed through taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Business-type activities are financed in 

whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

Page 50



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 27 - 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  

 

A statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues 

for each function of the Town’s governmental activities and segment of its business-type 

activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function 

and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. The Town does not allocate 

indirect expenses to programs or functions. Program revenues include: 

 

 charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 

 operating grants and contributions, and 

 capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. 

 

Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including internally dedicated resources 

and all taxes, are reported as general revenues. 

 

Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 

financial statements to minimize the double counting of internal activities. However, charges for 

interfund services provided and used are not eliminated if the prices approximate their external 

exchange values. 

 

Fund financial statements – provide information about the Town’s funds, including blended 

component units. Separate statements are presented for the governmental and proprietary fund 

categories. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise 

funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are 

aggregated and reported as non-major funds. 

 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from transactions 

associated with the fund’s principal activity in which each party receives and gives up essentially 

equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from 

transactions in which the parties do not exchange equal values. Revenues generated by ancillary 

activities are also reported as nonoperating revenues. 

 

The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 

 

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources 

of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 

The Community Development Grants Fund accounts for specific grant revenue sources that are 

legally restricted to expenditures for community development. 

 

The Grants Fund accounts for specific revenue received that is legally restricted to expenditures 

for specified purposes.  

 

 

 

Page 51



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 28 - 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  

 

The Town reports the following major enterprise funds: 

 

The Sewer Fund, Tianguis Economic Development Fund, and Refuse Fund account for 

operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, in 

which the intent of the Town Council is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of 

providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 

primarily through user charges; or for which the Town Council has decided that periodic 

determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred, or net income is appropriate for capital 

maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 

 

C. Basis of Accounting 

 

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are presented using the 

economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 

recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of 

when the related cash flows take place. Grants and donations are recognized as revenue as soon 

as all eligibility requirements the provider imposed have been met. 

 

Governmental funds in the fund financial statements are reported using the current financial 

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, 

revenues are recognized when measurable and available. The Town considers all revenues 

reported in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within 60 days 

after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for 

principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated 

absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they are due and payable. General 

capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuances of 

general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital lease agreements are reported as other 

financing sources. 

 

D. Cash and Investments 

 

For the statement of cash flows, the Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash 

on hand, demand deposits, investments in the State Treasurer’s local government investment 

pool, and only those highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when 

purchased.  

 

E. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 

 

Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are estimated by the Town. The amount 

recorded as uncollectible at June 30, 2019 for notes receivable in the Governmental Activities 

was $596,643 (see Note 4). 

Page 52



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 29 - 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  

 

F.  Capital Assets 

 

Capital assets are reported at actual cost (or estimated historical cost if historical records are not 

available). Donated assets are reported at acquisition value. 

 

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the 

capital asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets are as 

follows: 

 

Capitalization Depreciation Estimated

Threshold Method Useful Life

Land 5,000$           n/a n/a

Construction in progress 5,000             n/a n/a

Buildings and building improvements 5,000             Straight-line 50

Land improvements 5,000             Straight-line 10

Equipment 5,000             Straight-line 5

Streets 5,000             Straight-line 40

Curbs and gutters 5,000             Straight-line 40

Street lights 5,000             Straight-line 40

 
G. Investment Income 

 

Investment income is composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of 

applicable investments. 

 

H. Compensated Absences 

 

Compensated absences consist of vacation leave earned by employees based on services already 

rendered. 

 

Employees may accumulate up to 240 hours of vacation depending on years of service, but any 

vacation hours in excess of the maximum amount that are unused at year-end are forfeited. Upon 

termination of employment, all unused vacation benefits are paid to employees. Accordingly, 

vacation benefits are accrued as a liability in the financial statements. 

 

Employees may accumulate up to 480 hours of sick leave hours but any sick hours in excess of 

the maximum amount that are unused at year-end are forfeited. Because sick leave benefits do 

not vest with employees, a liability for sick leave benefits is not accrued in the financial 

statements. 

 

Page 53



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 30 - 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  

 

I.  Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

 

The statement of net position and balance sheet include separate sections for deferred outflows of 

resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a 

consumption of net position that applies to future periods that will be recognized as an expense 

or expenditure in future periods. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net 

position or fund balance that applies to future periods and will be recognized as a revenue in 

future periods. 

 

J.  Postemployment Benefits 

 

For purposes of measuring the net pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) assets 

and liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 

pensions and OPEB, and pension and OPEB expense, information about the plans’ fiduciary net 

position and additions to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined 

on the same basis as they are reported by the plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 

refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 

benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

 

K.  Fund Balance Reporting 

 

The governmental funds’ fund balances are reported separately within classifications based on a 

hierarchy of the constraints placed on those resources’ use. The classifications are based on the 

relative strength of the constraints that control how the specific amounts can be spent. The 

classifications are nonspendable, restricted, and unrestricted, which includes committed, 

assigned, and unassigned fund balance classifications. 

 

The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because 

they are either not in spendable form, such as inventories, or are legally or contractually required 

to be maintained intact. Restricted fund balances are those that have externally imposed 

restrictions on their usage by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, 

or laws and regulations. 

 

The unrestricted fund balance category is composed of committed, assigned, and unassigned 

resources. Committed fund balances are self-imposed limitations that the Town Council has 

approved, which is the highest level of decision-making authority within the Town. Only the 

Town Council can remove or change the constraints placed on committed fund balances. 

 

Assigned fund balances are resources constrained by the Town’s intent to be used for specific 

purposes, but that are neither restricted nor committed. The Town Council has authorized the 

Town manager to assign resources for a specific purpose. 

Page 54



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 31 - 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued  

 

The unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all 

spendable amounts not reported in the other classifications. Also, deficits in fund balances of the 

other governmental funds are reported as unassigned. 

 

The Town’s policy for committed fund balances is through formal Town resolutions passed 

through the elected town council. The process of rescinding a committed fund balance requires 

the same process. 

 

The Town’s policy for assigned fund balances is through motions passed by the elected town 

council. Assigned fund balances do not require a formal resolution. 

 

When an expenditure is incurred that can be paid from either restricted or unrestricted fund 

balances, it is the Town’s policy to use (the Town will use) restricted fund balance first. It is the 

Town’s policy to use (the Town will use) committed amounts first when disbursing unrestricted 

fund balances, followed by assigned amounts, and lastly unassigned amounts. 

 

L. Budgets 

 

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 

for all governmental funds. All annual appropriations lapse at year end. The Town is subject to 

the State of Arizona’s Spending Limitation Law for Towns and Cities. This law does not permit 

the Town to spend more than budgeted revenues plus the carry-over unrestricted cash balance 

from the prior fiscal year. The limitation is applied to the total of the combined funds. The Town 

complied with this law during the year. 

 

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the department level. The 

individual budgetary comparison schedules as listed in the table of contents present all major 

governmental funds which incurred an excess of expenditures/expenses over appropriations for 

the year ended June 30, 2019, if any. 

Page 55



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 32 - 

NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

 

Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) authorize the Town to invest public monies in the State 

Treasurer’s investment pool; obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States or any of the 

senior debt of its agencies, sponsored agencies, corporations, sponsored corporations, or 

instrumentalities; specified state and local government bonds, notes, and other evidences of 

indebtedness; interest-earning investments such as savings accounts, certificates of deposit, and 

repurchase agreements in eligible depositories; specified commercial paper issued by 

corporations organized and doing business in the United States; specified bonds, debentures, 

notes, and other evidences of indebtedness that are denominated in United States dollars; and 

certain open-end and closed-end mutual funds, including exchange traded funds. In addition, the 

Town Treasurer may invest trust funds in certain fixed income securities of corporations doing 

business in the United States or District of Columbia.  

 

Credit Risk 

Statutes have the following requirements for credit risk: 

1. Commercial paper must be of prime quality and be rated within the top two ratings by a 

nationally recognized rating agency.  

2. Bonds, debentures, notes, and other evidences of indebtedness that are denominated in 

United States dollars must be rated “A” or better at the time of purchase by at least two 

nationally recognized rating agencies.  

3. Fixed income securities must carry one of the two highest ratings by Moody’s investor’s 

service and Standard and Poor’s rating service. If only one of the above-mentioned 

services rates the security, it must carry the highest rating of that service. 

 

Custodial credit risk  

Statutes require collateral for deposits at 102 percent of all deposits federal depository insurance 

does not cover.  

 

Concentration of credit risk 

Statutes do not include any requirements for concentration of credit risk  

 

Interest rate risk 

Statutes require that public monies invested in securities and deposits have a maximum maturity 

of 5 years. The maximum maturity for investments in repurchase agreements is 180 days.  

 

Foreign currency risk 

Statutes do not allow foreign investments unless the investment is denominated in United States 

dollars.  

 

The Town does not have a formal investment policy with respect to custodial risk, concentration 

of credit risk, or foreign currency risk. 

Page 56



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 33 - 

NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS – Continued  

 

Deposits – At June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the Town’s total nonpooled cash in bank 

was $421,672, and the bank balance was $437,662. Of the bank balances, $250,000 was covered 

by federal depository insurance or similar insurance. The remainder was covered by collateral 

held by the pledging financial institution in the Town’s name.  

 

Investments—At June 30, 2019, the investments consisted of the following. 

 

Rating Credit Reported Fair

Organization Rating Amount Value

Arizona LGIP Pool 5 S&P AAA 2,423,836$  2,423,836$  

Investment

 
Investments in the State Treasurer’s investment pools are valued at the pool’s share price 

multiplied by the number of shares the Town held. The fair value of a participant’s position in 

the pools approximates the value of that participant’s pool shares. The State Board of Investment 

provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s investment pools. 

 

 

NOTE 3 – DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

 

Due from other governments for each governmental fund consisted of the following: 

 
Community

Community Service

Development HURF/LTAF Grants

General Grants Grants Fund Fund

Fund Fund Fund (non-major) (non-major)

Federal Government -$               -$               57,653$          -$               -$               

State of Arizona 33,351            -                 -                 39,652            -                 

Maricopa County 16,034            -                 -                 -                 -                 

Other governments 5,523              400                 -                 -                 32,220            

54,908$          400$               57,653$          39,652$          32,220$          

Due from other governments for the Sewer and Refuse Funds consisted of amounts due from the 

City of Tempe totaling $13,544 and $55,188, respectively. 

Page 57



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 34 - 

NOTE 4 – NOTES RECEIVABLE 
 

On the government-wide statement of net position, the Town recognizes notes receivable from 

individuals who are part of the Home Investment Partnership Program (HOME). Through the 

HOME program, qualifying families receive grant funding towards buying a home and in return 

sign a note agreement payable to the Town. The Town places a lien on the property for the 

amount of the HOME funds the family receives. Note maturities vary from 10 to 30 years with 

interest rates that are below market. Proceeds from principal and interest payments are applied to 

other HOME program expenses. Some of the loans stipulate that the loan amount is forgiven 

over the life of the loan on a straight-line basis. The Town has recorded the loan balance net of 

amounts expected to be forgiven. 
 

Notes receivables at June 30, 2019 consisted of $1,264,004 of which $596,643 are expected to be 

forgiven. The notes receivable balance – net totaled $667,361. 
 
 

NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 

 
Balance Balance

July 1, 2018 Increases Decreases June 30, 2019

Governmental activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Construction in progress 10,995$         34,206$         (10,995)$       34,206$         

Land 7,039,174      -                -                7,039,174      

Total capital assets not being depreciated 7,050,169      34,206           (10,995)         7,073,380      

Capital assets being depreciated:

Building and building improvements 4,091,113      6,000             -                4,097,113      

Land improvements 2,615,295      480,985         -                3,096,280      

Equipment 3,013,670      83,534           -                3,097,204      

Street lights 472,427         -                -                472,427         

Streets 5,772,378      568,652         -                6,341,030      

Curbs and gutters 4,594,274      -                -                4,594,274      

Total 20,559,157    1,139,171      -                21,698,328    

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Building and building improvements (2,506,333)    (70,377)         -                (2,576,710)    

Land improvements (735,518)       (126,612)       -                (862,130)       

Equipment (2,146,162)    (143,762)       -                (2,289,924)    

Street lights (194,025)       (24,910)         -                (218,935)       

Streets (1,871,940)    (184,564)       -                (2,056,504)    

Curbs and gutters (1,323,594)    (115,668)       -                (1,439,262)    

Total (8,777,572)    (665,893)       -                (9,443,465)    

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 11,781,585    473,278         -                12,254,863    

Governmental activities capital assets, net 18,831,754$  507,484$       (10,995)$       19,328,243$  

Page 58



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 35 - 

NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS – Continued 

 
Balance Balance

July 1, 2018 Increases Decreases June 30, 2019

Business-type activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 84,703$         -$              -$              84,703$         

Capital assets being depreciated:

Utility systems 1,848,472      -                -                1,848,472      

Equipment 91,421           -                -                91,421           

Buildings 25,000           -                -                25,000           

Building improvements 607,626         -                -                607,626         

Total 2,572,519      -                -                2,572,519      

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Utility systems (1,688,156)    (47,219)         -                (1,735,375)    

Equipment (46,607)         (12,804)         -                (59,411)         

Buildings (25,000)         -                -                (25,000)         

Building improvements (549,602)       (13,632)         -                (563,234)       

Total (2,309,365)    (73,655)         -                (2,383,020)    

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 263,154         (73,655)         -                189,499         

Business-type activities capital assets, net 347,857$       (73,655)$       -$              274,202$       
 

 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 

 

Governmental activities:

Highways and streets 342,009$     

Community development 127,859       

Public safety 90,339         

General government 87,785         

Health and welfare 17,901         

Total governmental activities depreciation expense 665,893$     

Business-type activities:

Sewer 60,023$       

Tianguis center 13,632         

Total business-type activities depreciation expense 73,655$       

 

Page 59



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 36 - 

NOTE 6 – UNEARNED REVENUE 
 

The Town has received advanced contract payments for the lease of billboard space with a term 

of 20-years. The Town recognizes revenue annually at 1/20th of the contract price. The remaining 

amount is recorded as unearned revenue that will be recognized as revenue over the life of the 

contract. The amount deferred for the billboard contract at June 30, 2019 is $192,501. The 

remaining balance of unearned revenue in the governmental funds consists of grant advances in 

which the Town had not yet fulfilled contract requirements to recognize revenue. 
 

 

NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 

Loans payable from direct borrowings and direct placements – The Town’s loans payable 

consist of a loan of $2,145,000 received through the Greater Arizona Development Authority 

(GADA). The loan requires principal payments annually beginning July 1, 2014 with interest 

payments of 2.00 percent paid semiannually on July 1 and January 1 with the first interest 

payment due July 1, 2014. Total loan net proceeds of $2,389,785 were used to refinance a prior 

loan through GADA. Excise taxes and state-shared revenues are used as security for the loan 

payable. 

 

Loans payable from direct borrowings and direct placements at June 30, 2019, were as follows: 

 

Face Maturity Interest Outstanding

Value Ranges Rate June 30, 2019

2,145,000$   2014-2023 2.00% 800,000$        

Description

Loan payable

 

Page 60



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 37 - 

NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – Continued 

 

The following schedule details the Town’s long-term liability and obligation activity for the year 

ended June 30, 2019. 

 
Balance Balance Due within

July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions June 30, 2019 1 year

Governmental activities:

Compensated absences 63,406$         23,448$         -$               86,854$         78,169$         

Net pension and OPEB

liability 2,253,422      -                 118,529         2,134,893      -                 

Capital lease payable 565,789         -                 50,467           515,322         52,028           

1,045,000      -                 245,000         800,000         -                 

Loan premium 71,953           -                 25,861           46,092           10,577           

Governmental activities

long-term liabilities 3,999,570$    23,448$         439,857$       3,583,161$    140,774$       

Business-type activities:

Compensated absences 3,433$           1,806$           -$               5,239$           4,715$           

Net pension and OPEB

liability 88,296           -                 6,627             81,669           -                 

Business-type activities

long-term liabilities 91,729$         1,806$           6,627$           86,908$         4,715$           

Loans payable from direct 

borrowings and direct 

placements

The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the Town’s loan 

payable from direct borrowings and direct placements at June 30, 2019. 

 

Year

Ending Premium

June 30 Principal Amortization Interest

2020 -$          10,577$     16,195$     

2021 255,000     18,816       10,897       

2022 265,000     12,438       5,516         

2023 280,000     4,261         -            

Total 800,000$   46,092$     32,608$     

Governmental Activities

Loan Payable from Direct Borrowings and 

Direct Placements

 
 

Page 61



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 38 - 

NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – Continued 

 

Capital leases—The Town has acquired equipment under the provisions of a long-term lease 

agreement classified as a capital lease for accounting purposes because it provides for a bargain 

purchase option or a transfer of ownership by the end of the lease term. 

 

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows: 

 

Governmental

Activities

Fire truck 563,036$         

Copier 9,702               

572,738           

Less: accumulated depreciation (104,999)          

Carrying value 467,739$         

 
The following schedule details debt service requirements to maturity for the Town’s capital 

leases payable at June 30, 2019: 

 

Year Ending Governmental

June 30 Activities

2020 67,491$           

2021 65,971             

2022 65,971             

2023 65,971             

2024 65,971             

2025-2028 263,883           

Total minimum lease payments 595,258           

Less amount representing interest (79,936)            

Present value of net minimum lease payments 515,322$         

 

Page 62



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 39 - 

NOTE 8 – RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 

of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town carries 

commercial insurance for all such risks of loss, including workers’ compensation and 

employees’ health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not 

exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

 

 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

 

The Town contributes to the pension plans described below. The plans are component units of 

the State of Arizona.  

 

At June 30, 2019, the Town reported the following aggregate amounts related to pensions and 

other postemployment benefits (OPEB) for all plans to which it contributes: 

 

Statement of Net Position and 

Statement of Activities

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

Net OPEB asset 2,466$                  199$                     2,665$                  

Net pension and OPEB liability 2,134,893             81,669                  2,216,562             

Deferred outflows of resources

related to pension and OPEB 573,619                14,548                  588,167                

Deferred inflows of resources

related to pension and OPEB 271,873                12,056                  283,929                

Pension and OPEB expense 296,632                5,236                    301,868                

 
The Town reported $250,617 of pension and OPEB contributions as expenditures in the 

governmental funds related to all plans to which it contributes. 

 

Page 63



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 40 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued 

 

A. Arizona State Retirement System 

 

Plan Description – Town employees not covered by the other pension plans described below 

participate in the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS). The ASRS administers a cost-

sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer 

defined benefit health insurance premium benefit (OPEB) plan, and a cost-sharing multiple-

employer defined benefit long-term disability (OPEB) plan. The Arizona State Retirement 

System Board governs the ASRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, 

Articles 2 and 2.1. The ASRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes its 

financial statements and required supplementary information. The report is available on its 

website at www.azasrs.gov. 

 

Benefits Provided – The ASRS provides retirement, health insurance premium supplement, 

long-term disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefits terms. Retirement 

benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly compensation, and service credit as 

follows: 

 

Before July 1, 2011 On or after July 1, 2011

Years of service and age 

required to receive benefit Sum of years and age equals 80  

30 years age 55

10 years age 62 25 years age 60

5 years age 50* 10 years age 62

Any years age 65 5 years age 50*

Any years age 65

Final average salary is based on Highest 36 months of last 120 

months

Highest 60 months of last 120 

months

Benefit percent per year of 

service

2.1% to 2.3% 2.1% to 2.3%

*With actuarially reduced benefits.

Initial Membership Date:

 
Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013, are subject 

to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on excess investment earning. Members with a 

membership date on or after September 13, 2013, are not eligible for cost-of-living adjustments. 

Survivor benefits are payable upon a member’s death. For retired members, the retirement 

benefit option chosen determines the survivor benefit. For all other members, the beneficiary is 

entitled to the member’s account balance that includes the member’s contributions and 

employer’s contributions, plus interest earned. 

Page 64



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 41 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

Health insurance premium benefits are available to retired or disabled members with 5 years of 

credited service. The benefits are payable only with respect to allowable health insurance 

premiums for which the member is responsible. For members with 10 or more years of service, 

benefits range from $100 per month to $260 per month depending on the age of the member and 

dependents. For members with 5 to 9 years of service, the benefits are the same dollar amounts 

as above multiplied by a vesting fraction based on completed years of service. 

 

Active members are eligible for a monthly long-term disability benefit equal to two-thirds of 

monthly earnings. Members receiving benefits continue to earn service credit up to their normal 

retirement dates. Members with long-term disability commencement dates after June 30, 1999, 

are limited to 30 years of service or the service on record as of the effective disability date if 

their service is greater than 30 years. 

 

Contributions – In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine active 

member and employer contribution requirements. The combined active member and employer 

contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits employees earn during the year, 

with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. For the year ended June 30, 

2019, statute required active ASRS members to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 

11.80 percent (11.64 percent for retirement and 0.16 percent for long-term disability) of the 

members’ annual covered payroll, and statute required the Town to contribute at the actuarially 

determined rate of 11.80 percent (11.18 percent for retirement, 0.46 percent for health insurance 

premium benefit, and 0.16 percent for long-term disability) of the active members’ annual 

covered payroll. In addition, the Town was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially 

determined rate of 10.53 percent (10.41 percent for retirement, 0.06 percent for health insurance 

premium benefit, and 0.06 percent for long-term disability) of annual covered payroll of retired 

members who worked for the Town in positions that an employee who contributes to the ASRS 

would typically fill. The Town’s contributions to the pension, health insurance premium benefit, 

and long-term disability plans for the year ended June 30, 2019, were $89,346, $3,207, and 

$1,169, respectively.  

 

During fiscal year 2019, the Town paid for ASRS pension and OPEB contributions as follows: 

61.46 percent from the General Fund, 14.73 percent from the HURF/LTAF Fund (nonmajor), 

16.34 percent from the Community Services Grants Fund (nonmajor), 5.50 percent from the 

Sewer Fund, and 1.97 percent from the Tianguis Economic Development Fund. 

 

Liability - At June 30, 2019, the Town reported the following asset and liabilities for its 

proportionate share of the ASRS’ net pension/OPEB asset or liability. 

 

Net 

Pension/OPEB 

(Asset) Liability

Pension 1,089,220$           

Health insurance premium benefit (2,665)                   

Long-term disability 4,076                     

Page 65



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 42 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

The net asset and net liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2018. The total liability used to 

calculate the net asset or net liability was determined using update procedures to roll forward the 

total liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, to the measurement date of June 

30, 2018. The total liabilities as of June 30, 2018, reflect changes in actuarial assumptions based 

on the results of an actuarial experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2016, 

including decreasing the discount rate from 8 percent to 7.5 percent, changing the projected 

salary increases from 3–6.75 percent to 2.7–7.2 percent, decreasing the inflation rate from 3 

percent to 2.3 percent, and changing the mortality rates. 

 

The Town’s proportion of the net asset or net liability was based on the Town’s actual 

contributions to the plan relative to the total of all participating employers’ contributions for the 

year ended June 30, 2018. The Town’s proportions measured as of June 30, 2018, and the change 

from its proportions measured as of June 30, 2017, were: 

 

Proportion              

June 30, 2018

Increase 

(decrease) from 

June 30, 2017

Pension 0.00781% 0.00024%

Health insurance premium benefit 0.00740% -0.00021%

Long-term disability 0.00780% 0.00023%  
 

Expense – For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Town recognized the following pension and 

OPEB expense.  

 

Pension/OPEB 

Expense

Pension 65,960                  

Health insurance premium benefit 2,646                    

Long-term disability 1,485                     

Page 66



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 43 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources—At June 30, 2019, the Town reported deferred 

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB from the 

following sources: 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between 

expected and actual 

experience 30,007$       6,005$       -$            2,459$       104$            -$           

Changes of assumptions 

or other inputs 28,823         96,574       5,139           -             883              -             

Net difference between 

projected and actual 

earnings on plan 

investments -              26,193       -              5,323         -              395            

Changes in proportion 

and differences 

between Town 

contributions and 

proportionate share of 

contributions 35,997         24,433       -              16              82                -             

Town contributions 

subsequent to the 

measurement date 89,346         -             3,207           -             1,169           -             

Total 184,173$     153,205$   8,346$         7,798$       2,238$         395$          

Pension Health Insurance Long-Term Disability

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ASRS pensions and OPEB 

resulting from Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an 

increase of the net asset or a reduction of the net liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other 

amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 

pensions and OPEB will be recognized as expenses as follows:  

Year ended June 30, Pension

Health Insurance 

Premium Benefit

Long-Term 

Disability

2020 11,733$                (1,037)$                 23                         

2021 (18,631)                 (1,035)                   24                         

2022                  (39,733) (1,036)                   24                         

2023 (11,747)                 100                       130                       

2024 -                        349                       149                       

Thereafter -                        -                        324                       

Page 67



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 44 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

Actuarial Assumptions – The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total 

pension/OPEB liability are as follows: 

 

ASRS

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2017

Actuarial roll forward date June 30, 2018

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Investment rate of return 7.5%

Projected salary increases 2.7 - 7.2% for pensions/not applicable for OPEB

Inflation 2.3%

Permanent benefit increase Included for pensions/not applicable for OPEB

Mortality rates 2017 SRA Scale U-MP for pensions and health insurance 

premium benefit

Recovery rates 2012 GLDT for long-term disability

Healthcare cost trend rate Not applicable

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an 

actuarial experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2016. 

 

The long-term expected rate of return on ASRS plan investments was determined to be 7.5 

percent using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates 

of return (expected returns, net of plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 

major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 

weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 

adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of 

return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

 

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long-term 

Expected 

Geometric Real 

Rate of Return

Equity 50% 5.50%

Fixed income 30% 3.83%

Real estate 20% 5.85%

Total 100%

Page 68



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 45 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

Discount Rate – At June 30, 2018, the discount rate used to measure the ASRS total 

pension/OPEB liability was 7.5 percent, which was a decrease of 0.5 from the discount rate used 

as of June 30, 2017. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 

that contributions from participating employers will be made based on the actuarially determined 

rates based on the ASRS Board’s funding policy, which establishes the contractually required 

rate under Arizona statute. Based on those assumptions, the plans’ fiduciary net position was 

projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 

Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of 

projected benefit payments to determine the total pension/OPEB liability. 

 

Sensitivity of the Town’s Proportionate Share of the ASRS Net Pension/OPEB (Asset) 

Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – The following table presents the Town’s 

proportionate share of the net pension/OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.5 

percent, as well as what the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension/OPEB liability would 

be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.5 percent) or 1 

percentage point higher (8.5 percent) than the current rate: 

 

1% Decrease

Current Discount 

Rate 1% Increase

(6.5%) (7.5%) (8.5%)

Town's Proportionate share of the

Net pension liability 1,552,708$           1,089,220$           701,983$              

Net insurance premium benefit 

liability (asset) 9,442                    (2,665)                   (12,977)                 

Net long-term disability liability 4,619                    4,076                    3,548                    

Page 69



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 46 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued 

 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the plans’ fiduciary net position is 

available in the separately issued ASRS financial report. 

  

B. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System 

 

Plan Descriptions – Town fire employees participate in the Public Safety Personnel Retirement 

System (PSPRS) or employees who became members on or after July 1, 2017, may participate in 

the Public Safety Personnel Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (PSPDCRP). The PSPRS 

administers agent and cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans and agent 

and cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance premium benefit (OPEB) 

plans. A nine-member board known as the Board of Trustees and the participating local boards 

govern the PSPRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4. 

Employees who were PSPRS members before July 1, 2017, participate in the agent plans, and 

those who became PSPRS members on or after July 1, 2017, participate in the cost-sharing plans 

(PSPRS Tier 3 Risk Pool) which are not further disclosed because of their relative insignificance 

to the Town’s financial statements. 

 

The PSPRS issues publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 

required supplementary information. The report is available on the PSPRS website at 

www.psprs.com. 

 

Benefits Provided – The PSPRS provide retirement, health insurance premium supplement, 

disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefits terms. 

 

Page 70



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 47 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

Retirement, disability, and survivor benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly 

compensation, and service credit as follows: 

 

Before January 1, 2012 On or after January 1, 2012 and 

before July 1, 2017

Retirement and Disability

Years of service and age 

required to receive benefit

20 years of service, any age 15 

years of service, age 62

25 years of service or 15 years 

of credited service, age 52.5

 

 

Final average salary is based on Highest 36 consecutive months 

of last 20 years

Highest 36 consecutive months 

of last 20 years

Benefit percentage   

Normal Retirement 50% less 2.0% for each year of 

credited service less than 20 

years OR plus 2.0% to 2.5% for 

each year of credited services 

over 20 years, not to exceed 

80%

1.5% to 2.5% per year of 

credited service, not to exceed 

80%

Accidental Disability 

Retirement  

Catastrophic Disability 

Retirement

Ordinary Disability 

Retirement

Survivor Benefit

Retired Members

Active Members 80% to 100% of accidental disability retirement benefit or 100% 

of average monthly compensation if death was result of injuries 

received on the job

Initial Membership Date:

50% or normal retirement, whichever is greater

90% for the first 60 months then reduced to either 62.5% or 

normal retirement, whichever is greater

Normal retirement calculated with actual years of credited service 

or 20 years of credited service, whichever is greater, multiplied by 

years of credited service (not to exceed 20 years) divided by 20

80% to 100% of retired member's pension benefit

 
 

Retirement and survivor benefits are subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on 

inflation. PSPRS also provides temporary disability benefits of 50 percent of the member’s 

compensation for up to 12 months. 

Page 71



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 48 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

Health insurance premium benefits are available to retired or disabled members with 5 years of 

credited service. The benefits are payable only with respect to allowable health insurance 

premiums for which the member is responsible. Benefits range from $100 per month to $260 per 

month depending on the age of the member and dependents. 

 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms – At June 30, 2019, the following employees were 

covered by the agent plans’ benefit terms: 

 

Pension Health

Inactive employees or 

beneficiaries currently receiving 

benefits 1                         1                         

Active employees 4                         4                         

Total                           5                           5 

PSPRS Fire

 
Contributions – State statutes establish the pension contribution requirements for active PSPRS 

employees. In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine employer 

contribution requirements for PSPRS pension and health insurance premium benefits. The 

combined active member and employer contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of 

benefits employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded 

accrued liability. Contributions rates for the year ended June 30, 2019, are indicated below. Rates 

are a percentage of active members’ annual covered payroll. 

 

Active Member-

Pension Town-Pension

Town-Health 

Insurance 

Premium Benefit

PSPRS Fire 7.65% - 11.65% 38.51% 0.63%  
 

In addition, statute required the Town to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 33.40% 

of the annual covered payroll of Town employees who were PSPRS Tier 3 Risk Pool members, 

in addition to the Town’s required contributions to the PSPRS Tier 3 Risk Pool for these 

employees.

Page 72



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 49 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

The Town’s contributions to the plans for the year ended June 30, 2019, were: 

Pension

Health 

Insurance 

Premium Benefit

PSPRS Fire  $            147,376  $                3,213  
 

During fiscal year 2019, the Town paid for 100 percent of PSPRS pension and OPEB 

contributions from the General Fund. 

 

Liability – At June 30, 2019, the Town reported the following assets and liabilities: 

Net Pension 

(Asset) Liability 

Net OPEB 

(Asset) Liability

PSPRS Fire 1,102,665$         20,601$               
 

The net assets and net liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total liability used to 

calculate the net asset or liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.  

 

Actuarial Assumptions – The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total 

pension/OPEB liability are as follows: 

 

PSPRS

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2018

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Investment rate of return 7.40%

Wage inflation 3.5% for pensions/not applicable for OPEB

Price inflation 2.5% for pensions/not applicable for OPEB

Cost-of-living adjustment Included for pensions/not applicable for OPEB

Mortality rates

Healthcare cost trend rate Not applicable

RP-2014 tables using MP-2016 improvement scale with 

adjustments to match current experience

 

Page 73



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 50 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an 

actuarial experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2016. 

 

The long-term expected rate of return on PSPRS plan investments was determined to be 7.4 

percent using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates 

of return (expected returns, net of plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each 

major asset class. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for 

each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class

Target 

Allocation

Long-term 

Expected 

Geometric Real 

Rate of Return

Short term investments 2% 0.25%

Risk parity 4% 5.00%

Fixed Income 5% 1.25%

Real assets 9% 4.52%

GTS 12% 3.96%

Private credit 16% 6.75%

Real estate 10% 3.75%

Private equity 12% 5.83%

Non-U.S. equity 14% 8.70%

U.S. equity 16% 7.60%

Total 100%

 
Discount Rates – At June 30, 2018, the discount rate used to measure the PSPRS total 

pension/OPEB liabilities was 7.4 percent, which was the same as the discount rate used as of 

June 30, 2017. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 

plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer 

contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the actuarially determined 

contribution rate and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the plans’ fiduciary net 

position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 

plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied 

to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension/OPEB liability. 

Page 74



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 51 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

Changes in the Net Pension/OPEB Liability 
 

Total Pension 

Liability 

(a)

Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position 

(b)

Net Pension 

Liability (Asset) 

(a) - (b)

Balances at June 30, 2018 2,267,619$           1,127,050$           1,140,569$           

Changes for the year

Service Cost 77,589                  -                        77,589                  

Interest on the total liability 168,778                -                        168,778                

Differences between expected and actual experience 

in the measurement of the liability (107,903)               -                        (107,903)               

Contributions-employer -                        126,557                (126,557)               

Contributions-employee -                        25,685                  (25,685)                 

Net investment income -                        79,265                  (79,265)                 

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 

contributions (51,264)                 (51,264)                 -                        

Hall/Parker Settlement -                        (53,246)                 53,246                  

Administrative expense -                        (1,906)                   1,906                    

Other changes -                        13                         (13)                        

Net changes 87,200                  125,104                (37,904)                 

Balances at June 30, 2019 2,354,819$           1,252,154$           1,102,665$           

Total OPEB 

Liability 

(a)

Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position 

(b)

Net OPEB (Asset) 

Liability 

(a) - (b)

Balances at June 30, 2018 58,743$                39,596$                19,147$                

Changes for the year

Service Cost 977                       -                        977                       

Interest on the total liability 4,339                    -                        4,339                    

Differences between expected and actual experience 

in the measurement of the liability 54                         -                        54                         

Contributions-employer -                        1,200                    (1,200)                   

Net investment income -                        2,758                    (2,758)                   

Benefit payments, including refunds of employee 

contributions (1,200)                   (1,200)                   -                        

Administrative expense -                        (42)                        42                         

Net changes 4,170                    2,716                    1,454                    

Balances at June 30, 2019 62,913$                42,312$                20,601$                

Pension

Increase (Decrease)

Health Insurance Premium Benefit 

Increase (Decrease)

Page 75



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 52 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

Sensitivity of the Town’s Net Pension/OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – 

The following table presents the Town’s net pension/OPEB (assets) liabilities calculated using 

the discount rate of 7.4 percent, as well as what the Town’s net pension/OPEB (asset) liability 

would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.4 percent) 

or 1 percentage point higher (8.4 percent) than the current rate: 

 

1% Decrease 

(6.4%)

Current 

Discount Rate 

(7.4%)

1% Increase 

(8.4%)

PSPRS Fire

Net pension (asset) liability 1,462,654$         1,102,665$         810,015$            

Net OPEB (asset) liability 28,405                20,601                14,090                 
 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the plans’ fiduciary net position is 

available in the separately issued PSPRS financial reports. 

 

Expense – For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Town recognized the following pension and 

OPEB expense: 

Pension Expense OPEB Expense

PSPRS Fire 230,732$            1,045$                 

Page 76



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 53 - 

NOTE 9 – PENSIONS AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued  

 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources – At June 30, 2019, the Town reported deferred 

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB from the 

following sources: 

 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between 

expected and actual 

experience 148,441$     107,461$   46$              106$          

Changes of assumptions 

or other inputs 81,927         9,336         -              4,880         

Net difference between 

projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan 

investments 12,407         -             -              748            

Town contributions 

subsequent to the 

measurement date 147,376       -             3,213           -             

Total 390,151$     116,797$   3,259$         5,734$       

Pension Health Insurance 

 
 

The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB resulting 

from Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase 

in the net asset or a reduction of the net liability in the year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts 

reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 

and OPEB will be recognized as expenses as follows:  

 

Pension Health

Year ended June 30,

2020 47,602$              (1,384)$               

2021 40,840                (1,384)                 

2022                  25,123 (1,384)                 

2023 28,049                (1,088)                 

2024 (7,849)                 (454)                    

Thereafter (7,787)                 6                         

PSPRS Fire

 

Page 77



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 54 - 

NOTE 10 – INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY 

 

Interfund payables – Interfund payables for the year ended June 30, 2019, were as follows: 

 

Sewer

Payable from Fund

Tianguis Econ. Dev. Fund 41,615$       

Payable to

 
The purpose of the interfund payables shown above was to temporarily fund the operations of the 

aforementioned departments/activities. 

 

Interfund transfers – Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2019, were as follows: 

 

Transfer General Sewer

To Fund Fund Total

HURF/LTAF Fund (nonmajor fund) 48,947$     100,698$   149,645$   

Community Services Grants Fund (nonmajor fund) 125,566     -             125,566     

Debt Service Fund (nonmajor fund) 292,245     -             292,245     

Total 466,758$   100,698$   567,456$   

Transfer From

 
The purpose of the interfund transfer shown above to the Community Service Grants Fund was 

to help pay for expenditures not reimbursable under grant contracts. The purpose of the transfer 

to the Debt Service Fund was to pay for debt service expenditures related to the GADA loans 

(see Note 7). The purpose of the interfund transfer from the Sewer Fund to the HURF/LTAF 

Fund was to pay for street expenditures incurred over current year revenues and the fund 

balance.   

 

 

NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS 

 

Refuse Collection Contract – The Town has contracted with a waste management firm to 

provide trash, and rubbish collection services to certain designated areas. The contract period is 

March 1, 2015 through February 28, 2020. Payments under the current contract for the year 

ended June 30, 2019, were approximately $275,961. Payments are based on the number of 

residences in the Town times a monthly rate of $16.07. The monthly rate is adjusted annually on 

March 1 based on the Consumer Price Index as published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics. The 

approximate total obligation under the contract for the next fiscal year based on the current 

number of residences in the Town is as $174,287. 

 

Page 78



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 55 - 

NOTE 11 – COMMITMENTS - Continued 

 

Public Safety – The Town of Guadalupe entered into a contract with the Maricopa County 

Sheriff’s Department for public safety services for the next fiscal year. Based on this agreement, 

the rendition of police services, the standards of performance, the discipline of officers, and other 

matters incidental to the performance of such services, and the control of personnel so employed 

shall remain in the County Sheriff’s Department. For the year ending June 30, 2019, the Town 

paid the County Sheriff $1,775,048 and had agreed to monthly installments of $147,921 for the 

2019 fiscal year. Under the contract, a notice of termination of contract may be given by either 

party 180 days prior to the date of intended termination. 

 

 

Page 79



 

- 56 - 

 

This page is intentionally left blank 

 

Page 80



 

- 57 - 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 

Page 81



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

General Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule. 

- 58 - 

Actual Variance with

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenue

Taxes 2,569,726$       2,569,726$       2,810,783$       241,057$          

Intergovernmental 1,973,405         1,973,405         1,960,085         (13,320)             

Charges for services 141,202            141,202            156,625            15,423              

Licenses and permits 93,000              93,000              38,349              (54,651)             

Other revenue 22,000              22,000              27,749              5,749                

Fines and forfeits 30,000              30,000              27,516              (2,484)               

Interest on investments 8,000                8,000                23,420              15,420              

Total revenue 4,837,333         4,837,333         5,044,527         207,194            

Expenditures

General Government

Administration 712,980            687,480            227,378            460,102            

Town Manager 157,699            167,699            170,229            (2,530)               

Finance 144,062            144,062            132,626            11,436              

Town Attorney 117,000            120,500            120,144            356                   

Building Inspection 91,360              91,360              89,946              1,414                

Building Maintenance 110,312            110,312            86,112              24,200              

Mayor & Council 74,780              74,780              66,358              8,422                

Information Technology 65,510              65,510              47,667              17,843              

Town Clerk 42,508              42,508              36,776              5,732                

Contingency 248,722            248,722            -                    248,722            

Total General Government 1,764,933         1,752,933         977,236            775,697            

Public Safety

Poilice 1,776,258         1,776,258         1,775,673         585                   

Fire 1,237,189         1,248,189         1,247,505         684                   

Court 236,014            236,014            198,549            37,465              

Total Public Safety 3,249,461         3,260,461         3,221,727         38,734              

Cultrure and Recreation

Parks 140,243            140,243            143,665            (3,422)               

Library 16,230              16,230              14,324              1,906                

Total Culture and Recreation 156,473            156,473            157,989            (1,516)               

Public Works and Streets

Cemetery 12,472              12,472              12,071              401                   

Community Development 39,823              40,823              38,647              2,176                

Total expenditures 5,223,162         5,223,162         4,407,670         815,492            

Excess (deficiency) of revenue

over expenditures (385,829)           (385,829)           636,857            1,022,686         

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in (out) (486,972)           (486,972)           (466,758)           20,214              

Net changes in fund balances (872,801)           (872,801)           170,099            1,042,900         

Fund balances, beginning of year 1,135,591         1,135,591         1,135,591         -                    

Fund balances, end of year 262,790$          262,790$          1,305,690$       1,042,900$       

Budgeted Amounts

Page 82



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Community Development Grants Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule. 

- 59 - 

Actual Variance with

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenue

Intergovernmental 1,408,050$       1,408,050$       568,652$          (839,398)$         

Other revenue -                    -                    40,374              40,374              

Total revenue 1,408,050         1,408,050         609,026            (799,024)           

Expenditures

Community development 1,408,050         1,408,050         699,979            708,071            

Net changes in fund balances -                    -                    (90,953)             (1,507,095)        

Fund balances, beginning of year 159,474            159,474            159,474            -                    

Fund balances, end of year 159,474$          159,474$          68,521$            (1,507,095)$      

Budgeted Amounts

Page 83



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Grants Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule. 

- 60 - 

Actual Variance with

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenue

Intergovernmental 2,863,453$       2,863,453$       391,269$          (2,472,184)$      

Expenditures

Public safety 2,769,453$       2,769,453         434,185            2,335,268         

General government 94,000              94,000              14,737              79,263              

Total expenditures 2,863,453         2,863,453         448,922            2,414,531         

Net changes in fund balances -                    -                    (57,653)             (57,653)             

Fund balances, beginning of year -                    -                    -                    -                    

Fund balances, end of year -$                  -$                  (57,653)$           (57,653)$           

Budgeted Amounts

Page 84



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Notes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 61 - 

NOTE 1 – BUDGETING AND BUDGETARY CONTROL 

 

A.R.S. requires the Town to prepare and adopt a balanced budget annually for each 

governmental fund. The Town Council must approve such operating budgets on or before the 

third Monday in July to allow sufficient time for the legal announcements and hearings required 

for the adoption of the property tax levy on the third Monday in August. A.R.S. prohibits 

expenditures or liabilities in excess of the amounts budgeted. 

 

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department level. In certain instances, 

transfers of appropriations between departments or from the contingency account to a department 

may be made upon the Town Council’s approval. With the exception of the General Fund, each 

fund includes only one department. 

 

 

NOTE 2 – BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

 

The Town’s budget is prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 

principles. 

 

 

NOTE 3 – EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS 

 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, expenditures exceeded final budget amounts at the department 

level (the legal level of budgetary control) in the Town Manager and Parks departments of the 

General Fund. 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate  

Share of the Net Pension/OPEB Liability 

Cost-Sharing Plans 

June 30, 2019 

 

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules. 

- 62 - 

ASRS-Pension

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

(2018) (2017) (2016) (2015) (2014)

Town's proportion of the net 

pension liability 0.007810% 0.007570% 0.007970% 0.006910% 0.006605%

Town's proportionate share 

of the net pension liability 1,089,220$      1,179,258$      1,286,438$      1,075,859$      977,331$         

Town's covered payroll 774,034$         738,432$         745,853$         636,171$         595,402$         

Town's proportionate share 

of the net pension liability 

as a percentage of its 

covered-employee payroll 140.72% 159.70% 172.48% 169.11% 164.15%

Plan fiduciary net position 

as a percentage of the 

total pension liability 73.40% 69.92% 67.06% 68.35% 69.49%

Reporting Fiscal Year

(Measurement Date)

2014 

through 

2010

Information 

not available

 
 

Page 86



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate  

Share of the Net Pension/OPEB Liability 

Cost-Sharing Plans 

June 30, 2019 

 

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules. 

- 63 - 

ASRS-Health Insurance Premium Benefit

2019 2018

(2018) (2017)

Town's proportion of the net 

OPEB (asset) 0.007400% 0.007610%

Town's proportionate share 

of the net OPEB (asset) (2,665)$           (4,143)$           

Town's covered payroll 774,034$         738,432$         

Town's proportionate share 

of the net OPEB (asset) 

as a percentage of its 

covered-employee payroll -0.34% -0.56%

Plan fiduciary net position 

as a percentage of the 

total OPEB liability 102.20% 103.57%

ASRS-Long-Term Disability

2018 2018

(2017) (2017)

Town's proportion of the net 

OPEB (asset) 0.007800% 0.007570%

Town's proportionate share 

of the net OPEB (asset) 4,076$             2,744$             

Town's covered payroll 774,034$         738,432$         

Town's proportionate share 

of the net OPEB (asset) 

as a percentage of its 

covered-employee payroll 0.53% 0.37%

Plan fiduciary net position 

as a percentage of the 

total OPEB liability 77.83% 84.44%

2017 

through 

2010

(Measurement Date)

Reporting Fiscal Year

Information not 

available

2017 

through 

2010

(Measurement Date)

Reporting Fiscal Year

Information not 

available

 

Page 87



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Changes in the Town’s  

Net Pension/OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Agent Pension Plans 

June 30, 2019 

 

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules. 

- 64 - 

PSPRS

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

(2018) (2017) (2016) (2015) (2014)

Total pension liability Information

Service cost 77,589$         79,931$         59,089$         50,177$         50,552$         not available

Interest on the total pension liability 168,778         147,625         119,379         110,540         96,007           

Changes of benefit terms -                15,342           131,109         -                21,443           

Differences between expected and actual 

experience in the measurement of the 

pension liability (107,903)       134,105         97,848           (4,211)           (41,101)         

Changes of assumptions or other inputs -                (13,572)         78,089           -                106,427         

Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions (51,264)         (48,359)         (48,359)         (48,359)         (47,649)         

Net change in total pension liability 87,200           315,072         437,155         108,147         185,679         

Total pension liability - beginning 2,267,619      1,952,547      1,515,392      1,407,245      1,221,566      

Total pension liability - ending (a) 2,354,819$    2,267,619$    1,952,547$    1,515,392$    1,407,245$    

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer 126,557$       94,415$         82,876$         58,412$         55,194$         

Contributions - employee 25,685           37,461           36,288           30,153           27,116           

Net investment income 79,265           114,391         5,169             29,544           92,104           

Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions (51,264)         (48,359)         (48,359)         (48,359)         (47,649)         

Hall/Parker Settlement (53,246)         -                -                -                -                

Administrative expense (1,906)           (1,412)           (1,144)           (1,107)           -                

Other changes 13                  11                  5                    (527)              (23,055)         

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 125,104         196,507         74,835           68,116           103,710         

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 1,127,050      930,543         855,708         787,592         683,882         

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 1,252,154$    1,127,050$    930,543$       855,708$       787,592$       

Town's net pension (asset) 

liability - ending (a) - (b) 1,102,665$    1,140,569$    1,022,004$    659,684$       619,653$       

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 

of the total pension liability 53.17% 49.70% 47.66% 56.47% 55.97%

Covered payroll 336,757$       351,344$       311,485$       272,878$       261,991$       

Town's net pension (asset) liability 

as a percentage of covered payroll 327.44% 324.63% 328.11% 241.75% 236.52%

Reporting Fiscal Year

2014 through 

2010

(Measurement Date)

 
 

 

 

Page 88



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Changes in the Town’s  

Net Pension/OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Agent Pension Plans 

June 30, 2019 

 

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules. 

- 65 - 

PSPRS-OPEB

2019 2018

(2018) (2017)

Total OPEB liability

Service cost 977$              1,159$           Information

Interest on the total OPEB liability 4,339             4,605             not available

Differences between expected and actual 

experience in the measurement of the 

OPEB liability 54                  (154)              

Changes of assumptions or other inputs -                (7,094)           

Benefit payments (1,200)           (1,200)           

Net change in total OPEB liability 4,170             (2,684)           

Total OPEB liability - beginning 58,743           61,427           

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 62,913$         58,743$         

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer 1,200$           3,059$           

Net investment income 2,758             4,071             

Benefit payments (1,200)           (1,200)           

Administrative expense (42)                (36)                

Other changes -                -                

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,716             5,894             

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 39,596           33,702           

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 42,312$         39,596$         

Town's net OPEB (asset) 

liability - ending (a) - (b) 20,601$         19,147$         

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 

of the total OPEB liability 67.25% 67.41%

Covered payroll 336,757$       351,344$       

Town's net OPEB (asset) liability 

as a percentage of covered payroll 6.12% 5.45%

(Measurement Date)

Reporting Fiscal Year

2017 through 

2010

Page 89



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Town Pension/OPEB Contributions 

June 30, 2019 

 

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules. 

- 66 - 

ASRS-Pension

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Statutorily required contribution 89,349$      84,599$      79,603$      80,925$      69,279$      63,708$      

Town's contributions in relation 

to the statutorily required contribution (89,349)       (84,599)       (79,603)       (80,925)       (69,279)       (63,708)       

Town's contribution deficiency (excess) -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            

Town's covered payroll 809,291$    774,034$    738,432$    745,853$    636,171$    595,402$    

Town's contributions as a 

percentage of covered payroll 11.04% 10.93% 10.78% 10.85% 10.89% 10.70%

ASRS-Health Insurance Premium Benefit

2019 2018 2017

Statutorily required contribution 3,207$        3,178$        4,096$        

Town's contributions in relation 

to the statutorily required contribution (3,207)         (3,178)         (4,096)         

Town's contribution deficiency (excess) -$            -$            -$            

Town's covered payroll 809,291$    774,034$    738,432$    

Town's contributions as a 

percentage of covered payroll 0.40% 0.41% 0.55%

ASRS-Long-Term Disability

2019 2018 2017

Statutorily required contribution 1,169$        1,237$        1,029$        

Town's contributions in relation 

to the statutorily required contribution (1,169)         (1,237)         (1,029)         

Town's contribution deficiency (excess) -$            -$            -$            

Town's covered payroll 809,291$    774,034$    738,432$    

Town's contributions as a 

percentage of covered payroll 0.14% 0.16% 0.14%

Reporting Fiscal Year

Reporting Fiscal Year

Reporting Fiscal Year

Information 

not available

Information 

not available

Information 

not available

2013 

through 

2010

2016 

through 

2010

2016 

through 

2010

 

Page 90



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Town Pension/OPEB Contributions 

June 30, 2019 

 

See accompanying notes to pension/OPEB plan schedules. 

- 67 - 

PSPRS-Pension

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Actuarially determined contribution 147,376$    126,557$    94,415$      82,876$      58,412$      55,194$      

Town's contributions in relation 

to the actuarially determined 

contribution (147,376)     (126,557)     (94,415)       (82,876)       (58,412)       (55,194)       

Town's contribution deficiency (excess) -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            

Town's covered-employee payroll 387,747$    336,757$    351,344$    311,485$    272,878$    261,991$    

Town's contributions as a 

percentage of covered payroll 38.01% 37.58% 26.87% 26.61% 21.41% 21.07%

PSPRS-OPEB

2019 2018 2017

Actuarially determined contribution 3,213$        1,200$        3,059$        

Town's contributions in relation 

to the actuarially determined 

contribution (3,213)         (1,200)         (3,059)         

Town's contribution deficiency (excess) -$            -$            -$            

Town's covered payroll 387,747$    336,757$    351,344$    

Town's contributions as a 

percentage of covered payroll 0.83% 0.36% 0.87%

Information 

not available

2016 

through 

2010

Reporting Fiscal Year

Reporting Fiscal Year

Information 

not available

2013 

through 

2010

Page 91



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Notes to Pension/OPEB Plan Schedules 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 68 - 

NOTE 1 – ACTUARIALLY DETERMINED CONTRIBUTION RATES 

 

Actuarial determined contribution rates for PSPRS are calculated as of June 30 two years prior to 

the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are made. The actuarial methods and 

assumptions used to establish the contribution requirements are as follows: 

 
Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Remaining amortization period as 

of the 2017 actuarial valuation

Asset valuation method

Actuarial assumptions:  

Investment rate of return

Projected salary increases

Wage growth

Retirement age

Mortality

Entry age normal

Level percent-of-pay, closed 

19 years

7-year smoothed market value; 80%/120% market corridor

In the 2017 actuarial valuation, the investment rate of return was decreased 

from 7.5% to 7.4%. In the 2016 actuarial valuation, the investment rate of 

return was decreased from 7.85% to 7.5%. In the 2013 actuarial valuation, 

the investment rate of return was decreased from 8.0% to 7.85%.

In the 2017 actuarial valuation, projected salary increases were decreased 

from 4.0%–8.0% to 3.5%–7.5% for PSPRS. In the 2014 actuarial 

valuation, projected salary increases were decreased from 4.5%–8.5% to 

4.0%–8.0% for PSPRS. In the 2013 actuarial valuation, projected salary 

increases were decreased from 5.0%–9.0% to 4.5%–8.5% for PSPRS.

In the 2017 actuarial valuation, wage growth was decreased from 4% to 

3.5% for PSPRS. In the 2014 actuarial valuation, wage growth was 

decreased from 4.5% to 4.0% for PSPRS. In the 2013 actuarial valuation, 

wage growth was decreased from 5.0% to 4.5% for PSPRS.

Experience-based table of rates that is specific to the type of eligibility 

condition.  Last updated for the 2012 valuation pursuant to an experience 

study of the period July 1, 2006 - June 30, 2011.

In the 2017 actuarial valuation, changed to RP-2014 tables, with 75% of 

MP-2016 fully generational projection scales. RP-2000 mortality table 

(adjusted by 105% for both males and females)  
 

NOTE 2 – FACTORS THAT AFFECT TRENDS 

 

Arizona courts have ruled that provisions of a 2011 law that changed the mechanism for funding 

permanent pension benefit increases and increased employee pension contribution rates were 

unconstitutional or a breach of contract because those provisions apply to individuals who were 

members as of the law’s effective date. As a result, the PSPRS changed benefit terms to reflect 

the prior mechanism for funding permanent benefit increases for those members and revised 

actuarial assumptions to explicitly value future permanent benefit increases. PSPRS also reduced 

those members’ employee contribution rates.  

 

 

Page 92



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Required Supplementary Information 

Notes to Pension/OPEB Plan Schedules 

June 30, 2019 

 

- 69 - 

NOTE 2 – FACTORS THAT AFFECT TRENDS - Continued 

 

These changes are reflected in the plans’ pension liabilities for fiscal year 2015 (measurement 

date 2014) for members who were retired as of the law’s effective date and fiscal year 2019 

(measurement date 2017) for members who retired or will retire after the law’s effective date. 

These changes increased the PSPRS-required pension contributions beginning in fiscal year 2016 

for members who were retired as of the law’s effective date.  

 

These changes will increase the PSPRS-required contributions beginning in fiscal year 2019 for 

members who retired or will retire after the law’s effective date. Also, the Town refunded excess 

employee contributions to PSPRS members. PSPRS allowed the Town to reduce its actual 

employer contributions for the refund amounts. As a result, the Town’s pension contributions 

were less than the actuarially or statutorily determined contributions for 2018 and 2019.

Page 93



 

- 70 - 

 

This page is intentionally left blank 

 

Page 94



 

- 71 - 

REPORTS AND SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY 

GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING STANDARDS AND  

UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 

 

 

Page 95



 

 

- 72 - 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 

To the Town Council  

Town of Guadalupe, Arizona 

 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 

statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the 

aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, as of and for the year 

ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 

comprise the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s, basic financial statements, and have issued our 

report thereon dated December 17, 2019. 

 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of 

Guadalupe, Arizona's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 

opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 

express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona's internal control. 

 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 

prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 

possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 

or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 

important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 

of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 

deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 

not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Page 96



 

 

- 73 - 

Compliance and Other Matters 

 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s 

financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 

certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 

which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement 

amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 

objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our 

tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 

under Government Auditing Standards. 

 

Purpose of this Report 

 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 

internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 

purpose. 

 
December 17, 2019

Page 97



 
 

- 74 - 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

 

To the Town Council 

Town of Guadalupe, Arizona 

 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

 

We have audited the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona's compliance with the types of compliance 

requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 

material effect on each of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona's major federal programs for the year 

ended June 30, 2019. The Town of Guadalupe, Arizona's major federal programs are identified 

in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 

questioned costs. 

 

Management's Responsibility 

 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 

conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

 

Auditor's Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Town of Guadalupe, 

Arizona’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements 

referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 

generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 

contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 

States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 

(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a 

major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 

Town of Guadalupe, Arizona’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other 

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 

major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town 

of Guadalupe, Arizona's compliance. 

Page 98



 

 

- 75 - 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

 

In our opinion, the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona complied, in all material respects, with the 

types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 

on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

 

Management of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona is responsible for establishing and maintaining 

effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 

above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Town of 

Guadalupe, Arizona's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could 

have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 

compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 

compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express 

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona's internal control over 

compliance. 

 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 

over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 

their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 

compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 

control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 

compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 

compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 

a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 

requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 

over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 

the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal 

control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did 

not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 

our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 

requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 

purpose. 

 
December 17, 2019 

 

Page 99



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule. 

- 76 - 

 Federal Pass through

Federal Grantor/Pass Through CFDA Grantor's Disbursements/

 Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Passed through Area Agency on Aging:

Aging Cluster:

Special Programs for the Aging_Title III, Part B 93.044  2019-22-GUA 21,301$              

Special Programs for the Aging_Title III, Part C 93.045  2019-22-GUA 80,444                

Nutrition Services Incentive Program 93.053  2019-22-GUA 10,436                

Total Aging Cluster 112,181              

Social Services Block Grant 93.667  2019-22-GUA 4,312                  

Passed through Maricopa County Human Services Department:

TANF Cluster:

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558  C-22-16-046-3-02 5,089                  

Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568  C-22-16-046-3-02 17,509                

Total U.S. Department Health and Human Services 139,091        

U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) 97.083  EMW-2017-FH-00367 57,653                

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Passed through Maricopa County Community Development:

CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster:

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 14.218  C-22-19-004-3-00 568,652              

Total Federal Assistance 765,396$            

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 100



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

June 30, 2019 

 

 

- 77 - 

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes the 

federal award activity of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona under programs of the federal 

government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in 

accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 

(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of 

the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, 

changes in net position, or cash flows of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona. 

 

 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual/accrual basis of 

accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the 

Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to 

reimbursement. The Town of Guadalupe, Arizona has not elected to use the 10-percent de 

minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Page 101



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

 

- 78 - 

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to 

be material weakness(es)? Yes X No

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to 

be material weakness(es)? Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance Yes X No

with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133?

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA 

Number Name of Federal Program

14.218

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs None

$750,000

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

CDBG-Entitlement 

Unmodified

Unmodified

 

Page 102



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

 

- 79 - 

 

The status of audit findings from the prior year is as follows: 

 

There were no prior year findings. 

 

Page 103



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Annual Expenditure Limitation Report 

and Independent Accountants’ Report 

June 30, 2019 

Attachment B

Page 104



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ...................................................................... 1 

 

Annual Expenditure Limitation Report - Part I  ....................................................................... 2 

 

Annual Expenditure Limitation Report - Part II  ...................................................................... 3 

 

Annual Expenditure Limitation Report - Reconciliation  ......................................................... 4 

 

Notes to Annual Expenditure Limitation Report  ..................................................................... 5 

 

 

Page 105



 

- 1 - 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT 

 
 

The Auditor General of the State of Arizona and 

The Honorable Mayor and Town Council  

of the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona 

 

We have examined the accompanying annual expenditure limitation report of the Town of 

Guadalupe, Arizona for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the report. The 

Town’s management is responsible for presenting this report in accordance with the uniform 

expenditure reporting system as described in note 1. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on this report based on our examination. 

 

We conducted our examination in accordance with attestation standards established by the 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and 

perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether this report is presented in 

accordance with the uniform expenditure reporting system in all material respects. An 

examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the report. The nature, timing, and extent of the procedures selected depend on our 

judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the report, whether 

due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

In our opinion, the annual expenditure limitation report referred to above is presented in 

accordance with the uniform expenditure reporting system as described in note 1 in all material 

respects. 

 
December 17, 2019 

Page 106



1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 
Annual Expenditure Limitation Report - Part I 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Economic Estimates Commission expenditure limitation $ 2,437,053 

Voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation 
(Approved June 23, 2016) 11,859,267 

Enter applicable amount from Line 1 or Line 2 

Total adjusted amount subject to the expenditure limitation 

Amount under (in excess of) the expenditure limitation 

$ 11,859,267 

7,410,744 

$ 4,448,523 

I hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge and belief, that the information contained in this 
report is accurate and in accordance with the requirements of the uniform expenditure reporting 
system. 

Sig"""~ of Chiclfoeal Offirec Pt! / i /1-----r \ 
Name and Title: Jeff Kulaga, To n Manager 

Telephone Number: (480) 505-5376 Date: December 17 2019 

See accompanying notes to report. 
- 2 -

Page 107



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Annual Expenditure Limitation Report – Part II 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

  

See accompanying notes to report. 

- 3 - 

 

 
Governmental Enterprise

Description Funds Funds Total

A.  Amounts reported on the Reconciliation, Line D 6,826,783$         583,961$            7,410,744$         

B.  Less exclusions claimed:

Total exclusions claimed -                      -                      -                      

C.  Amounts subject to the expenditure limitation 6,826,783$         583,961$            7,410,744$         

 

Page 108



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Annual Expenditure Limitation Report – Reconciliation 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

 

See accompanying notes to report. 

- 4 - 

 

 
Governmental Enterprise

Description Funds Funds Total

A.  Total expenditures/expenses/deductions and

applicable other financing uses, special items, and

extraordinary items reported within the fund

financial statements 6,826,783$         655,852$            7,482,635$         

B.  Subtractions

Items not requiring use of current financial resources:

Depreciation -                      73,656                73,656                

Pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) 

expense -                      5,236                  5,236                  

Total subtractions -                      78,892                78,892                

C.  Additions

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB) contributions -                      7,001                  7,001                  

Total additions -                      7,001                  7,001                  

D.  Amounts reported on Part II, Line A 6,826,783$         583,961$            7,410,744$         

Page 109



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA 

Notes to Annual Expenditure Limitation Report  

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

 

  

- 5 - 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

The Annual Expenditure Limitation Report (AELR) is presented as prescribed by the uniform 

expenditure reporting system (UERS), as required by Arizona Revised Statutes §41-1279.07, and 

in accordance with the voter-approved alternative expenditure limitation adopted June, 23, 2016, 

as authorized by the Arizona Constitution, Article IX, §20(9). 

 

In accordance with the UERS, a note to the AELR is presented below for any exclusion claimed 

on part II and each subtraction or addition in the reconciliation that cannot be traced directly to 

an amount reported in the fund financial statements. All references to financial statement 

amounts in the following notes refer to the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in 

fund balances for the governmental funds; statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund 

net position for the proprietary funds; and the statement of cash flows for the proprietary funds. 

 

 

NOTE 2 – PENSION AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS EXPENSE AND 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

 

The $5,236 subtraction for pension and other post-employment benefit (OPEB) expense consists 

of changes in the net pension and OPEB liabilities, changes in deferred outflows related to 

pensions and OPEB, and changes in deferred inflows related to pensions and OPEB, recognized 

in the current year in the enterprise funds.  

 

The $7,001 addition for pension and OPEB contributions paid in the current year consists of the 

required pension and OPEB contributions made to the Arizona State Retirement System from the 

enterprise funds. 

Page 110



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA

FY18-19 Annual Financial Audit Presentation

By Colby & Powell, PLC

Attachment C

Page 111



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA

 We have audited the following:
 Governmental Activities

 Business-type Activities

 General Fund

 Community Development Grants Fund

 HURF/LTAF Fund

 Other Governmental Funds (Community Service Grants, 
Debt Service, and Capital Projects Funds)

 Sewer Fund

 Tianguis Economic Development Fund

 Refuse Fund

Page 112



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA

 Audit was performed in accordance with GAAS 

(Generally Accepted Auditing Standards) and 

Government Auditing Standards

 An audit involves performing procedures to 

obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements.

 All of the opinion units audited received an 

unmodified, or “clean” opinion.

Page 113



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA

 Internal control (IC) - process for assuring 
achievement of an organization's objectives in 
operational effectiveness and efficiency, reliable 
financial reporting, and compliance with laws, 
regulations and policies.

 In planning an performing our audit, we 
considered the Town’s IC, but do not issue an 
opinion.

 If we discover a weakness in IC that we consider 
significant, we’re required to report on it.

Page 114



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA

 No significant deficiencies or material 

weaknesses noted

See pages 72-73 of the audited financials for 

further details.

Page 115



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA

How did we do financially?

Net Position

Page 116



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA

 Government-wide financials provide an overall 

view of the Town.

 Net position (NP) can be a good indicator for 

how the general financial condition of the Town 

fares.

 An increase in NP is a good indicator that the 

Town is improving financially

Page 117



Page 118



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Governmental

Activities

Business-type

Activities

Total

Page 119



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA

 Unrestricted Net Position indicates amount 

available for general spending

 Unrestricted Net Position went from $398,954 

at June 30, 2018 to $432,279 at June 30, 

2019

Page 120



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA

 (1,000,000)

 (500,000)

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

2017 2018 2019

Govermental Activities

Business-type Activities

Total

Page 121



TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA

 Questions?

Page 122



Page 123



Maricopa County GIO, Maricopa County Assessor's Office

O

1/13/2020  3:47:23 PM

Map
Page 124



1 
 

 
 

 

 

Town of Guadalupe    

January 23, 2020 Town Council Regular Meeting 
Agenda Item: G3 

 

 

Avenida del Yaqui Right of Way Services Contract Recommendation Report 

 

Recommendation: Award a two-year contract, not to exceed $80,000, to CEI, Consultant Engineering, Inc., to provide 
property acquisition services for required temporary construction easements and other property rights, if needed, for 
construction and improvement of Avenida del Yaqui, from Calle Cerritos to Calle Carmen and shall ensure that all specified 
requirements of federal, state, and local regulations related to municipal land acquisition are satisfied.   

 
Background information:   The Town issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ), on December 17, 2018  soliciting statements 
of qualifications from qualified firms through a qualifications-based selection process, as described in ARS § 34-603.  Proposals 
from qualified firms were due on January 16, 2019.  The selected firm would provide property acquisition services as required 
for the construction and improvement of Avenida del Yaqui, from Calle Cerritos to Calle Carmen.  .   
 

The RFQ included a Scope of Services and required an understanding of property acquisition needed for the construction projects.  
The RFQ required the successful firm will be responsible for, but not necessarily limited to, the following general functions: 
 

 All acquisitions must be in strict accordance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policy Act of 1970 - Public Law 91-646 (“URARPPA”); 

 Providing all required information to property owners;  
 Additionally, specific activities required for compliance with the aforementioned federal regulations may include, but may not 

be limited to, the following tasks: Title Reports, Local Government Coordination, Appraisal and Appraisal Review Process, 
Acquisition of Real Property Process, Complete Ownership and Encumbrance Preliminary Title Report; 

 Assignment of all appraisers; 
 Notification to property owners; 
 Preparation of legal description;  
 Preparation of acquisition documents; Preparation of final offer and execution of a purchase contract, and;  
 Records Retention Process 

 
Notification of the solicitation was published on the Town website and in the newspaper.    
Proposal offers were received from five firms: 

 Acquisition Sciences, Ltd. 

 Consultant Engineering, Inc.  

 Dennis L. Lopez and Associates, LLC 

 Overland, pacific and Cutler, LLC 

 Tierra Right of Way 

 
Review of Submittals: 

 
An evaluation committee comprised of Town staff and the Town Engineer reviewed and scored the offers based on the criteria 
identified in the RFQ as follows:   
 

Page 125



2 
 

RFQ Evaluation Criteria  Points 

Firm’s Capabilities 15 

Experience and qualifications of the firm/team 30 

Experience of key personnel to be assigned to this project 20 

Understanding of the project and approach to performing the 
required services 

35 

Principal office location and local participation 10 

Overall evaluation of the firm/team and its perceived ability to 
provide the required services 

5 

Possible Total Score    115 

 
Evaluation Results: 
 
Evaluation of the five proposals yielded the following scoring results from the committee:   
 

Proposing Firm: Score  

Acquisition Sciences, 
Ltd.   

104 

Consultant Engineering, 
Inc.  

108 

Dennis L. Lopez and 
Associates, LLC 

85 

Overland, Pacific and 
Cutler, LLC 

94 

Tierra Right of Way 
 

104 

  

Selection Process and anticipated schedule: 
 
SOQ’s due January 16, 2019 by 3:00 p.m., Mountain Standard Time 
SOQ’s review and evaluation  January 17, 2019 – January 30, 2019  
Selection of firm  January 31, 2019 

 
This selection process is delayed due to the delay of the project as it is a federally funded project through the Maricopa Association of 
Governments and the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) is responsible for project management.  Nonetheless, proposing 
firms were notified in the delay of the selection process.    
 
Per the RFQ, the Town will enter into negotiations with the first firm on the final list and execute a contract upon completion of 
negotiation of fees and contract terms, for Town Council approval.  If the Town is unsuccessful in negotiating a contract with the best-
qualified firm, the Town may then negotiate with the next most qualified firm, in sequence, until an agreement is reached or a 
determination is made to reject all firms on the final list.  The Town will enter into a contract with only one firm, pursuant to this RFQ. 

 
Selection Results: 
 
The Town entered into negotiations with CEI and successfully negotiated agreeable terms, services and costs of services.   
 
Recommendation: 
 
Award a two-year contract, not to exceed $80,000, to CEI, Consultant Engineering, Inc., to provide property acquisition services for 
required temporary construction easements and other property rights, if needed, for construction and improvement of Avenida del 
Yaqui, from Calle Cerritos to Calle Carmen and shall ensure that all specified requirements of federal, state, and local regulations 
related to municipal land acquisition are satisfied 

Page 126



 

January 3, 2020 
 
Jeff Kulaga 
Town Manager/Clerk 
Town of Guadalupe 
9241 S. Avenida Del Yaqui 
Guadalupe, AZ 85283 
jkulaga@guadalupeaz.gov 
 
Re:  Scope of Work 
        Avenida Del Yaqui Project – Right of Way Acquisition Services 
 
Dear Mr. Kulaga: 
 
Consultant Engineering, Inc. (CEI) would like to thank the Town of Guadalupe for selecting our firm for this opportunity to provide 
our services for the above referenced project.  Per your request, (CEI) will provide the following scope of work in support of the 
Avenida Del Yaqui project: 
 
CEI will provide acquisition services for the required Temporary Construction Easements related to the project.   The fees for 
these services are detailed in attached Fee Estimate.   The total cost shall not exceed $80,000 and will be completed within three 
years of receiving a Notice to Proceed.   
 
If you have any questions, feel free to contact me at 480-201-8646 (mobile phone) or  chochstein@cei-az.com.   
CEI looks forward to working with the Town of Guadalupe! 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CONSULTANT ENGINEERING, INC. 
 

 
M. Clark Hochstein 
Vice President 
 
 
If this proposal and attached back-up documents are acceptable, please so indicate by signing and dating below.   The return of 
this signed document shall serve as our notice to proceed with this project. 
 
_________________________________________    _________________________________ 
Signature       Date 
 
__________________________________________ 
Name (Print), Title 
 
 
 
  cc:       J. Patterson, A. Connelly, CEI 

 

Page 127



FIRM:

TASK: N/A TASK DESCRIPTION: DATE:   11/22/2019

GRP: ROW FP FPPE T&E CPFF Clark Hochstein

PCL APN Owner Hours

Blended 
Labor Rate

Labor 
Cost

Est. Direct 
Expenses

1 Setup, preparation, and administration 
items applicable to all job acquisitions 24 $120.00 $2,880 $250 $3,130

2

Single Family-Driveway Tie-in
TCE Acquisition
(cost per parcel or multiple contiguous 
parcels with same owner)

24 $120.00 $2,880 $200 $3,080

3

Commercial/Mixed Use  -  Driveway Tie-
in
TCE Acquisition
(cost per parcel or multiple contiguous 
parcels with same owner)

32 $120.00 $3,840 $200 $4,040

4

Single Family 
TCE - Non-Driveway Tie-in 
(cost per parcel or multiple contiguous 
parcels with same owner)

32 $120.00 $3,840 $200 $4,040

5

Commercial/Mixed Use
TCE Acquisition- Non-Driveway Tie-in
(cost per parcel or multiple contiguous 
parcels with same owner)

40 $120.00 $4,800 $200 $5,000

PM to Attend Project or Public Meetings 4 $140.00 $560 $50 $610

n/a n/a n/a

Quantity Unit Price Total
n/a n/a

$0.00

Service Price

n/a

Property

Fee Acq Area Parcel Specific Assumptions

PRICING SHEET

METHOD OF PAYMENT:

PROJECT TITLE:      Right of Way Acquisition Services- Town of GuadalupeCEI

PREPARED BY: 

ROW Acquisition Services

Line / Parcel Item(s)

2. Agency parcel/design modifications may result in increased fees.

4. Agency to provide legal descriptions, exhibits and right of way strip map of areas to be acquired.  Legal description reviews do not include checking geometry for closure.

6. Assumes negotiated acquisitions of land only.  No utility relocation, arbitration, or condemnation tasks included.
5. Assumes only coordination services for closing of escrow and title clearing.  No actual closing and/or title clearing tasks included.

General Project Assumptions

Expenses

Totals

1. Agency to survey and/or mark extent of right of way and/or easement area(s) to be purchased in the field as necessary.

3. Agency to provide title reports, determinations that remainder properties are not rendered non-conforming (if any), title clearing services, closing of escrow services, and record all 
documents at their own costs.

This is a lump sum price per meeting

Estimated Acquisition Cost

This lump sum price applies to all the general administrative set up and 
planning required in preparation for job specific acquisitions.

This is a lump sum price for an individual parcel or multiple contiguous 
parcels with same owner based on the type of acquisition.

This is a lump sum price for an individual parcel or multiple contiguous 
parcels with same owner based on the type of acquisition.

This is a lump sum price for an individual parcel or multiple contiguous 
parcels with same owner based on the type of acquisition.  Includes 
Waiver Valuation report for acquisition costs less than $10,000 per 
parcel.

This is a lump sum price for an individual parcel or multiple contiguous 
parcels with same owner based on the type of acquisition.  Includes 
Waiver Valuation report for acquisition costs less than $10,000 per 
parcel.

Total 
Lump
Sum
Price

Total Sub-Contractors:

Firm

Included in lump sum items above

Sub-Contractors

Total Expenses:

 Page 1 of 1

Page 128



ORDINANCE NO. O2020.01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
GUADALUPE, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, ESTABLISHING 
REASONABLE REGULATIONS AND PERMITTED USES FOR THAT CERTAIN 
PARCEL OF REAL PROPERTY KNOWN AS LA LOMITA. 

 
WHEREAS, that certain parcel of land known as La Lomita is owned by the Town of Guadalupe; and 

 
WHEREAS, La Lomita was known as a historic and cultural center for the residents of Guadalupe long 

before the Town acquired legal title to the property; and 
 

WHEREAS, historically many of the residents of Guadalupe have gone to La Lomita for a variety of cultural 
and religious purposes including, but not limited to, meditation, prayer, religious observances, spiritual reflection, to 
enjoy a hilltop view of the Town, and to reflect on the founding of the Town, and the challenges the first settlers 
encountered; and 

 
WHEREAS, La Lomita is a small space and it is necessary to adopt reasonable hours of use, and 

reasonable rules to ensure that this special place is protected and preserved for the reasonable use of all of the 
residents of Guadalupe. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

GUADALUPE, ARIZONA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. La Lomita hours of use shall be 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. unless a permit is obtained in advance from 
the Town Manager prior to such use. 

 
2. No fees shall be charged for the issuance of the permit. 

 
3. Permitted uses are reflection, meditation, prayer, small religious ceremonies and other small 

gatherings for uses consistent with the purposes stated herein. 

 
4. The use of La Lomita by any one group or person may not last more than two (2) hours on any 

given day unless a permit has been obtained prior to the use. 
 

5. Unless a permit has been obtained the use of La Lomita by any person or group shall be on a first 
come first served basis and shall not block access, or prevent the simultaneous use of La Lomita by another person 
or group if such uses are not incompatible. 

 
6. There shall be no sleeping, camping, or overnight stays at La Lomita unless a permit has been 

obtained from the Town Manager. Overnight candle light vigils or similar events are allowed with a permit. 

Page 129



2  

7. Anyone who enters upon the La Lomita grounds in violation of these rules, or remains thereon 
unlawfully may be charged with trespassing pursuant to the Arizona Revised Statutes A.R.S. § 13-1502 et. seq. 

 

8. There shall be no loud noises, fireworks or disorderly conduct at the La Lomita in violation of A.R.S. 
§13-2904(A)1-5.  

 
9. Anyone who causes criminal damage at La Lomita as defined in the Arizona Revised Statutes as set 

forth in A.R.S. § 13-1601 et. seq. may be charged with a criminal misdemeanor as set forth in A.R.S. §§ 13-
1602(A)(1)(2) and (5), and 13-1602(B)(5) and (6). 

 
10. Anyone who commits criminal littering at La Lomita as defined in A.R.S. § 13- 1601(3), A.R.S. § 13-

1603(A)(1)(2)(3), may be charged with a class one criminal misdemeanor as set forth in A.R.S. § 13-1603(B)(2) and 
(3) and a class two criminal misdemeanor if charged under A.R.S. § 13-1603(B)(4). 

 
11. The Town Manager, or designee, shall enforce these rules.  Permit requests must be made not less 

than 10 days prior to an event. 
 

12. Before any permit is issued, the Manager shall consider the impact of the proposed event on the 
surrounding neighborhood and the impact to other possible users of the La Lomita while the proposed use or event 
would be underway. 

 
13. The decision of the Town Manager on any permit request shall be final. 

 
14. The legal description of La Lomita is attached hereto as Exhibit A, Special Warranty Deed, 

November 26, 2007.   
 

15. This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after its adoption.  Enforcement shall not occur until after 
appropriate signage related to this ordinance has been posted at La Lomita. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of Guadalupe, Arizona this 9th day of January, 
2019. 

 
 

ATTEST: TOWN OF GUADALUPE, an 
Arizona Municipal Corporation 

 
 

 

Jeff Kulaga Valerie Molina 
Town Manager / Clerk Mayor 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

 

David E. Ledyard 
Town Attorney 

 
 

 

Page 130



Exhibit A
Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



 

1/9/2020 

 

 
Town of Guadalupe 
9241 South Avenida del Yaqui 
Guadalupe, AZ  85283 
Phone:  (480) 730-3080 
Fax:      (480) 505-5368 

 

La Lomita Use Permit Application 

 

Applicant Name:       Contact Phone Number:      Date:     

 

Address:              
  City    State    Zip Code 

 

Driver License / ID Number:       Expiration date:      

 

Date requested:      Time of use:      to     

 

Event description:             

 

Number of people expected:      

 

Applicant signature:             

 
Incomplete applications will not be processed.   Completed applications must be submitted at least 
10 business days in advance of the event date.  Requests may be made in person at Guadalupe 
Town Hall Monday – Friday between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m.  
 

This form is a request only and does not guarantee reservation of La Lomita 
until proper approval of the Town Manager, or designee, has been issued. 

 
 
Town Manager, or designee, signature:         
 

Approval date:        Denial date:     
 

See back of form for La Lomita rules and regulations, per  
Town of Guadalupe, Ordinance No. O2020.01. 

Page 135



 

1/9/2020 

  

1. La Lomita hours of use shall be 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. unless a permit is obtained in advance from the 
Town Manager, or designee, prior to such use. 

 
2. No fees shall be charged for the issuance of the permit. 

 
3. Permitted uses are reflection, meditation, prayer, small religious ceremonies, and other small 

gatherings for uses consistent with the purposes stated herein. 

 
4. The use of La Lomita by any one group or person may not last more than two (2) hours on any given 

day unless a permit has been obtained prior to the use. 
 

5. Unless a permit has been obtained, the use of La Lomita by any person or group shall be on a first 
come first served basis and shall not block access, or prevent the simultaneous use of La Lomita by another person 
or group if such uses are not incompatible. 

 
6. There shall be no sleeping, camping, or overnight stays at La Lomita unless a permit has been obtained 

from the Town Manager. Overnight candle light vigils or similar events are allowed with a permit. 
 

7. Anyone who enters upon the La Lomita grounds in violation of these rules, or remains thereon 
unlawfully, may be charged with trespassing pursuant to the Arizona Revised Statutes A.R.S. § 13-1502 et. seq. 

 
8. There shall be no loud noises, fireworks, or disorderly conduct at the La Lomita in violation of A.R.S. § 

13-2904(A)(1) and (5). 
 

9. Anyone who causes criminal damage at La Lomita as defined in the Arizona Revised Statutes as set 
forth in A.R.S. § 13-1601 et. seq. may be charged with a criminal misdemeanor as set forth in A.R.S. §§ 13-
1602(A)(1)(2) and (5), and 13-1602(B)(5) and (6). 

 
10. Anyone who commits criminal littering at La Lomita as defined in A.R.S. § 13- 1601(3), A.R.S. § 13-

1603(A)(1)(2)(3), may be charged with a class one criminal misdemeanor as set forth in A.R.S. § 13-1603(B)(3) and 
a class two criminal misdemeanor if charged under A.R.S. § 13-1603(B)(4). 

 
11. The Town Manager, or designee, shall enforce these rules. Permit requests must be made not less 

than 10 days prior to an event. 
 

12. Before any permit is issued, the Town Manager, or designee, shall consider the impact of the proposed 
event on the surrounding neighborhood and the impact to other possible users of the La Lomita while the proposed 
use or event would be underway. 

 
13. The decision of the Town Manager, or designee, on any permit request shall be final. 

 
 
Applicant’s signature:  ________________________   Date:  ________________ 

La Lomita Rules and Regulations 

Page 136



 

 

 

 

 

 

Important improvements to residential trash and recycling collection services effective Tuesday, March 3, 2020. 

 

The Town of Guadalupe and Right Away Disposal (RAD) are excited to announce a new partnership in providing improved 

residential trash and recycling services.  On Jan. 9, 2020, the Guadalupe Town Council approved an eight-year contract 

with RAD for trash and recycling collection services. Residential trash collection services with RAD will begin on Tuesday, 

March 3, 2020. We are confident that customers will be happy with the level and frequency of services, along with 

competitive rates.  Our goal is to make the transition from our current service provider, Waste Management, to RAD, as 

seamless as possible.  

 

Here’s what you can expect in late February and early March: 

 

When will our service change?  

Waste Management will continue to provide trash collection services until Friday, Feb. 28, 2020. On Thursday, Feb. 27, and 

Friday, Feb. 28, Waste Management will collect all of their trash and recycling carts. Please place your Waste Management 

trash and recycling carts at the curb on these dates.  Waste Management will no longer provide service after Feb. 28, 2020. 

 

RAD will deliver 1 new 96-gallon tan colored trash cart on Saturday, Feb. 22, and Sunday, Feb. 23, to all homes that have 

an active utility account with the City of Tempe. If you do not have an active account, please contact the City of Tempe at 

480-350-8361 to sign up for an account. A RAD Welcome Guide, outlining the new services, will be delivered with the new 

trash cart.   

 

What days does our trash get collected?  

The new RAD services begin on Tuesday, March 3, 2020.  RAD will only collect trash from RAD carts.   All residential 

trash collection will be on Tuesdays and Fridays for the entire Town of Guadalupe. To ensure your trash is collected, place 

your trash cart out on the curb the night prior, or by 6 a.m. on Tuesdays and Fridays. Please bag and tie all garbage to 

reduce spills, fly breeding, and odor.  Please try to place the trash cart 10 feet away from cars, light posts, and mail boxes.   

 

Will trash collection occur twice a week?   

Yes, curbside trash collection will occur on Tuesdays and Fridays, for the entire Town.   

 

Will curbside recycling collection continue?   

No, curbside recycling collection service has been discontinued. Voluntary recycling disposal is available on Saturdays at 

the Town Maintenance Yard from 7 am to noon.   

 

 

- more - 

  

Town of Guadalupe 

Announces new trash and recycling collection 

service services 
 

Page 137



 

Will the monthly cost increase?   

The current monthly rate of $20.75 for standard service will remain in place until June 30, 2021. This amount provides for 

Tuesday and Friday trash collection service and voluntary recycling service.   In June 2021, it is likely a cost increase may 

occur, however, per the contractual agreement an annual rate increase cannot exceed 5 percent.   

 

Why did recycling service change?  

Recycling carts in the Town were being filled with too much trash instead of recyclable material.  Our average contamination 

rate in the carts has been 35 percent; an average contamination rate in other communities is 10-15 percent. High 

contamination rates raises costs. In order to continue providing curbside recycling, we would have needed to raise 

everyone’s monthly bill by $3.15.  In order to keep the same monthly billing rate, voluntary recycling at the Town 

Maintenance Yard is offered.  Additional information about recyclable materials will be included in the RAD customer 

welcome guide.   

 

Will my monthly costs go down if I am currently paying for an additional trash cart? Yes, if you are paying $41.25 

monthly for an additional trash cart, with the new service, you will only be billed the standard $20.75 monthly.  Each 

additional trash cart cost $12 per month. 

 

Can I get more than one trash cart or order dumpsters?  

Yes, additional trash carts may be requested for $12 per month and will be billed in addition to the standard $20.75 monthly 

service. Other one-time dumpster services can be ordered for a fee. All services and fees will be outlined in the welcome 

packet. To schedule, add or reduce service please call RAD at 480-983-9100. 

 

Will trash be collected on holidays?  

RAD observes four holidays throughout the year and will not be providing collection services on the following holidays:  New 

Year’s Day, Independence Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day. Should trash collection fall on one of these 

holidays, collection will occur the following business day.   

 

What if I have other questions? 

If you have any questions, comments, and/or concerns, please contact the Town of Guadalupe at 480-730-3080 or email us 

at Services@guadalupeaz.org.  This information is online at: www.guadalupeaz.org/trashcollection. 

 

Thank you for your support and assistance during this transition.    

 

 

Page 138

mailto:Services@guadalupeaz.org


 
 

 

 

 

 

Importantes mejoras en los servicios de recolección y reciclado de residuos a partir del martes 3 de marzo de 2020. 

 

El pueblo de Guadalupe y Right Away Disposal (RAD) tienen el agrado de anunciar una nueva asociación para prestar mejores 

servicios residenciales de recolección y reciclado de residuos. El 9 de enero de 2020, el Consejo del pueblo de Guadalupe aprobó un 

contrato con RAD, de ocho años de duración, para prestar servicios de recolección y reciclado de residuos. Los servicios residenciales 

de recolección de residuos con RAD comenzarán el martes 3 de marzo de 2020. Estamos seguros de que los clientes estarán 

satisfechos con el nivel y la frecuencia de los servicios, y con las tarifas competitivas. Nuestro objetivo es que la transición de nuestro 

proveedor actual de servicios, Waste Management, a RAD se haga sin complicaciones.  

 

Esto es lo que puede esperar para fines de febrero y principios de marzo: 

 

¿Cuándo cambiará el servicio?  

Waste Management seguirá prestando servicios de recolección de residuos hasta el viernes 28 de febrero de 2020. El jueves 27 de 

febrero y el viernes 28 de febrero, Waste Management retirará todos sus carros de residuos y de reciclado. Le solicitamos que, esos 

días, coloque los carros de residuos y de reciclado de Waste Management en el cordón de la acera. Waste Management dejará de 

prestar servicios después del 28 de febrero de 2020. 

 

El sábado 22 y el domingo 23 de febrero, RAD entregará 1 carro nuevo de residuos de color marrón de 96 galones a todas las casas 

que tengan una cuenta de servicios públicos activa con la Ciudad de Tempe. Si usted no tiene una cuenta activa, llame a la Ciudad de 

Tempe al 480-350-8361 para inscribirse y obtener una cuenta. Junto con el nuevo carro de residuos, RAD entregará una Guía de 

bienvenida con la descripción de los nuevos servicios.   

 

¿Qué días se recogerán los residuos?  

Los nuevos servicios de RAD comenzarán el martes 3 de marzo de 2020. RAD solo recogerá los residuos de los carros RAD.   

Todas las recolecciones de residuos residenciales ser harán los martes y viernes en todo el pueblo de Guadalupe. Para asegurar que 

se recojan sus residuos, coloque su carro de residuos junto al cordón la noche anterior a los martes y viernes, o antes de las 6. a. m. 

en esos días. Coloque la basura en bolsas y átelas para evitar goteos de líquido, proliferación de moscas y olores. Trate de colocar el 

carro de residuos a una distancia de 10 pies de autos, postes de luz y buzones de correo postal.   

 

¿La recolección de residuos se hará dos veces por semana?   

Sí; la recolección de residuos en los carros ubicados junto al cordón se hará los martes y viernes, en todo el pueblo.   

 

¿Seguirá haciéndose la recolección para reciclado junto al cordón?   

No; el servicio de recolección de residuos para reciclado se ha suspendido. El desecho voluntario para reciclado está disponible los 

sábados en el Área de Mantenimiento del pueblo de 7:00 a. m. al mediodía.   

 

 

- Continúa - 

  

El pueblo de Guadalupe 

anuncia nuevos servicios de recolección y reciclado 

de residuos 
 

Page 139



 
¿Aumentará el costo mensual?   

La tarifa mensual actual de $20.75 por el servicio estándar continuará sin cambios hasta el 30 de junio de 2021. Esta cantidad 

corresponde al servicio de recolección de residuos los martes y viernes y al servicio de reciclado voluntario. En junio de 2021, es 

probable que haya un aumento de la tarifa; sin embargo, de conformidad con el contrato, el aumento de la tarifa anual no podrá 

exceder el 5 %.   

 

¿Por qué cambió el servicio de reciclado?  

En los carros de reciclado del pueblo se estaban arrojando demasiados residuos en lugar de material reciclable. Nuestro índice de 

contaminación estándar en los carros es del 35 %; en otras comunidades, el índice de contaminación estándar es del 10 al 15 %. Los 

índices altos de contaminación elevan los costos. Para continuar con el servicio de reciclado junto al cordón, tendríamos que aplicar 

un aumento de $3.15 a la factura mensual de todos los abonados. Para mantener la misma tarifa de la factura mensual, se ofrece el 

reciclado voluntario en el área de mantenimiento del pueblo. La Guía de bienvenida al cliente de RAD incluirá información adicional 

sobre los materiales reciclables.   

 

¿Bajará mi costo mensual si actualmente estoy pagando por un carro de residuos adicional? Sí; si usted está pagando $41.25 

por mes por un carro de residuos adicional, con el nuevo servicio se le cobrará solo la tarifa estándar de $20.75 por mes. Cada carro 

de residuos adicional costará $12 por mes. 

 

¿Puedo obtener más de un carro de residuos o solicitar contenedores?  

Sí; puede solicitar carros de residuos adicionales por $12 por mes y se le facturarán adicionalmente al servicio estándar de $20.75 por 

mes. Puede solicitar el servicio de contenedor por única vez pagando una tarifa adicional. Todos los servicios y las tarifas estarán 

indicados en el paquete de bienvenida. Para programar, agregar o reducir un tipo de servicios, llame al pueblo de Guadalupe al 480-

730-3080 

 

¿Se recogerán los residuos los días festivos?  

Hay cuatro días festivos del año en que RAD no trabaja, y no prestará servicios de recolección en estos días festivos: Año Nuevo,  

Día de la Independencia, Día de Acción de Gracias y Navidad. En caso de que el día de recolección de residuos coincida con algunos 

de estos días festivos, la recolección se hará el día hábil siguiente.   

 

¿Qué sucede si tengo otras preguntas? 

Si tiene preguntas, comentarios o preocupaciones, llame al pueblo de Guadalupe al 480-730-3080 o envíenos un mensaje de correo 

electrónico a Services@guadalupeaz.org. Puede encontrar esta información en línea en www.guadalupeaz.org/trashcollection. 

 

Gracias por su apoyo y asistencia durante esta transición. 

 

 

Page 140

mailto:Services@guadalupeaz.org


 
 

RESOLUTION R2019.17  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN GUADALUPE, ARIZONA APPROVING AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES BETWEEN MARICOPA COUNTY ADMINISTERED BY ITS 
HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, ARIZONA FOR THE GUADALUPE STREET 
REPAVEMENT PROJECT PHASE VII – CDBG19GD.  

 
 

WHEREAS, Maricopa County, administered by its Human Services Department, shall provide the Town of 
Guadalupe with U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Community Development Block Grant funds in 
the amount of $438,873 for services described as the Guadalupe Street Repavement Project Phase VII; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Guadalupe Street Repavement Project Phase VII will consist of removing and replacing 
approximately 11,673 square yards of asphalt on six (6) 30-foot streets from curb to curb. The streets are Calle Fortunado 
Serrano, Calle Juan Taeva, Calle Brigido Valenzuela, Calle Maximo Solarez, Ciculo S. Hernandez, and Jimenez Circle; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Program Number for the Guadalupe Street Repavement Project is CDBG19GD and the CFDA 

number is 14.218 and the DUNS number is 002503092; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Guadalupe and Maricopa County desire to enter into an intergovernmental agreement 
to set forth the duties of the Town and the County to complete the services during the term of the said agreement which 
begins on October 1, 2019 and ends on May 12, 2020.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE, 
ARIZONA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
That the Mayor is authorized and directed to execute the intergovernmental agreement (C2019-24) for services between 
the Town of Guadalupe, Arizona and Maricopa County, as administered by its Human Services Department for the 
Guadalupe Street Repavement Project Phase VII – CDBG19GD. 
 
  PASSED  AND  ADOPTED  BY  THE  TOWN  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF  GUADALUPE,  ARIZONA,  
THIS    DAY OF     , 2019. 
 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Valeria Molina, Mayor  
 
ATTEST:  
 
___________________________ 
Jeff Kulaga, Town Manager / Clerk 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ 
David E. Ledyard, Town Attorney 

Page 141



Contract No. C-22-20-014-3-01              Amendment No. 1 

 Page 1 of 2 

 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR SERVICES BETWEEN 

MARICOPA COUNTY 
ADMINISTERED BY ITS  

HUMAN SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
AND 

THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE 
 
 

I. Maricopa County (“County”), administered by its Human Services Department, entered into 
a financial Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) with the Town of Guadalupe 
(“Subrecipient”) on or about October 14, 2019. The purpose of the Agreement is for the 
County to provide the Subrecipient with funds to remove and replace approximately 11,673 
square yards of asphalt on six (6), 30-foot streets from curb to curb in residential areas. The 
County has provided the Subrecipient with $438,873 in U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds. The 
Agreement term began on November 1, 2019, and ends on November 1, 2021. The County 
and the Subrecipient collectively are referred to as the “Parties.” 
 

II. The Parties agree to amend the Agreement by this Amendment No. 1 as follows:  
 
A. Revise Section III (Work Statement), Paragraph 2.0 (Scope of Work), Subparagraph 

2.1 as follows: 
Project Description: The Subrecipient shall remove and replace approximately 
11,673 square yards of asphalt on six (6), 30-foot streets from curb to curb. The 
streets are Calle Fortunato Serrano, Calle Juan Taeva, Calle Brigido Valenzuela, 
Calle Maximo Solarez, Ciculo S. Hernandez, and Jimenez Circle. Project activities 
shall also include the installation of new speed humps on the following streets: 
S. Calle Tomi and W. Calle SENU. The project will be located in within the Town of 
Guadalupe, AZ. The engineering design and installation of the work shall meet 
Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) Standards and locally adopted codes. 

 
III. The Agreement is amended to incorporate the changes contained in this Amendment No. 

1. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force 
and effect as executed by the Parties.  

 
 

[Signatures on following page] 
  

Page 142



Contract No. C-22-20-014-3-01              Amendment No. 1 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
IN WITNESS, the Parties have signed this Amendment No. 1: 
 
APPROVED BY: 
 
THE TOWN OF GUADALUPE  

APPROVED BY:  
 
MARICOPA COUNTY 

 
 
___________________________________ 
Name and Title  
 
 

 
 
____________________________________ 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

Date: ______________________________ Date: _______________________________ 
 
Attested to: 
 
 
       
Town Clerk 
 
 
       
Date 

 
Attested to: 
 
 
       
Fran McCarroll, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
       
Date 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH A.R.S. §§ 9-240 and 
11-952, THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 HAS BEEN 
REVIEWED BY THE UNDERSIGNED 
ATTORNEY WHO HAS DETERMINED THIS 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 IS PROPER IN FORM 
AND WITHIN THE POWERS AND 
AUTHORITY GRANTED TO THE TOWN OF 
GUADALUPE UNDER THE LAWS OF THE 
STATE OF ARIZONA. 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Attorney for the Subrecipient       Date 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH A.R.S. §§ 11-201, 
11-251, AND 11-952, THIS AMENDMENT NO. 
1 HAS BEEN REVIEWED BY THE 
UNDERSIGNED ATTORNEY WHO HAS 
DETERMINED THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 IS 
PROPER IN FORM AND WITHIN THE 
POWERS AND AUTHORITY GRANTED TO 
MARICOPA COUNTY UNDER THE LAWS OF 
THE STATE OF ARIZONA. 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       
Deputy County Attorney       Date 

 

Page 143


	01 23 20 RCM Agenda
	Council Meeting 01 23 20  Information Memo
	G1.  Management Representation Letter 2019
	G1a.  Annual Financial Statements & Independent Auditor's Report
	G1b.  Guadalupe Expenditure Limitation Report
	G1c. FY 2019 Internal Audit Presentation 

	G2. ADOT Temporary Construction Easement
	G2a.  9050 South Calle Bella Vista Aerial

	G3. RFQ Avendia del Yaqui ROW Services Recommendation Report
	G3a. CEI Contract

	G4.  Ordiance No  O2020.01 - La Lomita Use Permit
	G4a.  La Lomita Legal Description
	G4b.  Lomita Draft Use Permit Application FINAL 01 09 20

	G5.  Solid Waste Collect Services Update - English
	Spanish

	G7.  Resolution No. R2019.17
	G7a. Amendment No. 1 CDBG IGA C2019-24




